
 

 

 

                      

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY,  MARCH 5, 2013 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Page1 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

   
 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)             Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)             Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)                   
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA   

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 
b. Minutes for Approval:  November 20, 2012; December 4, 2012; February 5, 2013 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 

Page2 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
       TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2013 
      Page 2 of 4  

 
 
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
03/05/2013 
 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. South Florida Water Management District:  Laura Corry, Community Outreach 
Representative, Office of Intergovernmental Programs  

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report and Approval of the 

January 2013 Financial Reports –  Board Member Virginia Standish 
 
 

 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading) –  
 
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-12  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” 
SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION FOR 
“RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 20, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, 
ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 80 
(CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING 
DISTRICT; TO AMEND ARTICLE 80, ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO 
ADD A NEW SECTION 80-60, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES,” TO PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
b. Ordinance No. 2013-01 

Page3 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



b. Ordinance No. 2013-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
COMPENSATION FOR COUNCIL MEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS,  SEVERABILITY,  AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  - Continued from December 4, 2012, Town Council Meeting 
 

a.  Public Hearing: - None 
 

 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
 

a.  Resolution No. 2013-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE VALLEY 
CREST SITE PLAN, FOR LAND OWNED BY MAGIC PROPERTIES V, 
LLC, CONSISTING OF 5.0 ACRES MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT 
13710 OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD; SOUTH SIDE OF OKEECHOBEE 
BOULEVARD APPROXIMATELY 0.25 MILES WEST OF “F” ROAD,   
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY DESCRIBED IN 
EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 

Page4 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



  
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
  
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
 a. Initiative Petition Certificate of Insufficiency 
 

b. Martin McCabe issue – Councilman Ron Jarriel 
 
c. Abandonment/Foreclosure Properties – Councilman Ron Jarriel 

 
  
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   
 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next Town Council Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 19, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

 Comments Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

Page5 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

2.a.  Invoices from Goren, Cherof,  

Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

Page6 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page7 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page8 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page9 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page10 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page11 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page12 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page13 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page14 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page15 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page16 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page17 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page18 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

2.b.  Minutes for Approval:  November 20, 2012; December 4, 2012; February 5, 2013 

Page19 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 1 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, November 20, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)   Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)   Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)   Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)         
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Upon roll call, those present were:  
Mayor David Browning, Vice Mayor Jim Rockett, and Council Members Tom Goltzené, Ronald 
Jarriel and Ryan Liang.  Also present were:  Town Manager Kutney, Town Planning Consultant 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Technician Braeden Garrett, Town Attorney Michael D. 
Cirullo, Jr., and Town Clerk Susan Eichhorn. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
The following changes were made to the Agenda: 

  
MOVE:  8.a. to become 3.b. 
 
Motion: The Agenda was approved, as amended, through motion of Council Member 
Liang, seconded by Council Member Goltzene.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 

Page20 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 2 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Minutes for Approval:  Minutes of the Town Council Meeting held on October 2, 2012; 
Minutes of the Joint Meeting of Town of Loxahatchee Groves Town Council and 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) held on October 16, 2012; Minutes of 
Special Town Council Meeting Held on November 12, 2012 

 
Mayor Browning noted that there was an amendment to the Minutes of the Joint Meeting of Town of 
Loxahatchee Groves Town Council and Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District held on October 
16, 2012: 
 
Addition of language under Item 2 (page 26 of 210 of the Agenda Packet):  Mayor Browning 
commented that it was the intent of both boards to give the Town control of the roads to be included, 
and that there was agreement that the Town could design the speed humps.  Town Attorney Cirullo 
replied that, within the design criteria, the Town could set the standards. 
 
Also, under item 2, 8th paragraph:  Deletion of the language “and South “F” Road would be 
included”:  Vice Mayor Rockett noted that it would include North “F” Road and South “F” Road, and 
North Road and South “F” Road would be included.   
 
 

b. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 
Motion:   Vice Mayor Rockett moved approval of the Consent Agenda, with the 
amendment to the Minutes of  the Joint Meeting of Town of Loxahatchee Groves Town Council 
and Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) held on October 16, 2012.  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Girl Scout Troop Presentation Regarding Girl Scout Program in Conjunction with 
Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School – Tracie Schiola, Girl Scout Troop Leader 

 
 

Page21 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 3 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Tracie Schiola leader of Girl Scout Troop 20673 requested putting a collection bin in the town 
offices for a service project for items donated to families and children in need at Loxahatchee 
Groves Elementary School. 
 
It was determined that a bin would be put in the town offices year round. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion that the Town Council make a cash 
contribution of $500 to Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School for children in need.  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 

b. Initiative Proceedings for Repeal of Town of Loxahatchee Groves ordinance 2012-04 and 
2012-05 (Palm Beach State College) 

 
Town Manager Kutney reviewed the initiative proceedings for the repeal of Ordinances 2012-04 
and 2012-05.  He stated that Amanda Guerry had asked to be removed from the committee.  
With that, he turned it over to Town Attorney Cirullo. 
 
Attorney Cirullo stated that the Town Charter provided for an initiative proceeding.  He 
reviewed the request of the committee.  He noted that there was a statute that prohibited 
referendum for comp plan amendments, and that gave him pause that this referendum was not 
appropriate, notwithstanding the Town’s Charter.  It was premature at this time to try to 
determine whether this was a valid question, because ultimately that would need to be done by a 
judge if the committee can reconstitute itself and pursue the initiative proceeding.   
 
Comments by the  Town Council: 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett requested that the Town Attorney prepare a Resolution for the Town 
Council that would re-state its position regarding the Palm Beach State College.  It was the 
consensus of the Town Council to agree with that request.   
 
Council Member Ron Jarriel commented that he would not support this petition, and that he did 
not think that those asked to be on the committee had not been advised of what exactly was 
involved; he stated that people had ample time to come before this Town Council.  
 
In response to several comments, Town Attorney Cirullo explained that the committee did not 
ask the Town Clerk to create the form to be signed; they had provided their own form.  One of 
the items on that form was the date of collection, and if that date did not correspond with the date 
that they had an active committee, that would be another basis for requiring a judge to resolve 
the issue. 

Page22 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 4 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
Mayor Browning and Vice Mayor Rockett commented in support of the college.  Discussion 
continued. 
 
Council Member Goltzené commented that if the ordinances were repealed, the college could 
end up with commercial property on which they could put up a shopping center or something 
else. 
 
Council Member Liang commented that he hoped that the pros and cons and possible 
ramifications were fully explained, and that folks had a right to file the petition, but that he 
hoped there was full explanation.   
 
Public Comments: 
 
Lung Chiu, 3270 “B” Rd.:  Commented in support of the college 
 
Frank Schiola, Marcella Blvd.: Commented in support of the college, the results if such a 
referendum went through, and if the people on the committee could be a party to a lawsuit.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo responded that if it got to the point where it unfortunately went through 
and the referendum, passed, the Town would definitely have to deal with some very significant 
issues for the Town.  He noted that there was a right in the Charter, however, it may be limited 
by State law on this subject. 
 
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Rd.:   Mayor Browning read Mr. McLendon’s comments into the 
record, as requested by Mr. McLendon.  The comments were submitted for the record to the 
Town Clerk. 
  
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Rd.:  Commented regarding amending the Charter to include a time 
limit for an initiative, educating citizens as to what they were signing, looking into the possibility 
of the Town taking some legal action.  
 
Phil Liu, 4245 148 Terr.N.: Commented regarding children or family relatives of Town resident 
who may go to the college, and if people do not live in the location, the roads and traffic would 
not affect them.  
 
Darlene Snowball, 161st Terrace North – commented that her family has been here since the 
1960s.  Growth was inevitable, and the people that are against this, should know that we are very 
blessed to have a college, rather than commercial.  The college was wonderful for the town; she 
suggested that the Town could end up with a Walmart, Target, etc.   

Page23 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 5 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to request the Town Attorney to prepare 
a resolution in support of the college, and to provide some legal analysis of options for the 
Town at the next meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  
 
Councilman Jarriel commented that a letter had been received from the attorneys representing 
the college, and read excerpts of the letter.  He stated that there was no doubt in his mind that a 
referendum would result in a vote of support for the college.  
 
The motion passed 5/0.  
 
Council Member Liang commented that he had heard comments saying that the voters do not 
have a voice, and he noted that during the past two years, there had been multiple workshops for 
the public to discuss the college, and he had not heard too many people saying that they were 
against the school; there had been some issues regarding traffic. 
  
Mayor Browning commented that the only people who had called him were some who lived very 
close to the project and they were all on board.  No one else had called him on this.  If citizens 
had a problem he encouraged them to call someone.   
 
Council Member Jarriel commented that he wanted it put on the record that these people 
approached the Loxahatchee Landowners Association and they voted not to support it.  They 
support the college and do not support the petition. 
 
Mayor Browning commented that they also had approached Sunsport, and they too are very 
much in favor of the college. 
 
 
 
 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
 a. FAAC Report & Approval of the August/September 2012 Financial Report – Vice Chair 

Elise Ryan 
 

The FAAC Report was provided by Chair Lung Chiu. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett moved approval of the August/September 2012 
Financial Report.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  The motion 
passed 4/0, as Council Member Jarriel had briefly left the dias. 

Page24 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 6 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading)– 
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO CREATE A NEW 
ARTICLE 41, ENTITLED “PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD)”; 
PROVIDING FOR PURPOSES AND INTENT, LAND USE AND 
DEVELOPMENT INTENSITY REGULATIONS, OBJECTIVES AND 
STANDARDS INCLUSIVE OF DESIGN REQUIREMENTS AND 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS, APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS, AND 
AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED PUDS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2012-08 by title, as printed above.   
 
Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann provided the staff report, and reported that 
staff recommended approval of Ordinance No. 2012-08. 
 
Mayor Browning opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no one desiring to speak 
 
Mayor Browning closed the Public Hearing. 

 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2012-08.  
The motion was seconded by Council Member Jarriel. The motion passed 5/0. 

 
 
 

b. Ordinance No. 2012-09 (Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing) 

Page25 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 7 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE 
REZONING OF LAND CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.76 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS, LOCATED ON SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, 
APPROXIMATELY 900 FEET EAST OF “C” ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AND AS DESIGNATED ON 
THE MAP ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS ORDINANCE, FROM 
PALM BEACH COUNTY ZONING DESIGNATION COMMUNITY 
COMMERCIAL (CC) TO THE TOWN’S ZONING DESIGNATION 
COMMERCIAL LOW (CL); PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATE 
REVISIONS OF THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that this was a quasi-judicial matter.  Town Attorney Cirullo 
administered the oath to staff.  There was no member of the public wishing to speak.  Town 
Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance 2012-09 by title, as printed above. 
 
Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann provided the staff report, and reported that staff 
recommended approval of Ordinance 2012-09.   
 
The Public Hearing was opened. 
 
There was no one desiring to speak. 
 
The Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that one thing to keep in mind was that these properties 
remain just pepper jungles with tires everywhere and maybe something should be done to clean 
up these type of properties.  He noted that this particular property, as well as others up there, 
were places where bums hang out. 
 
Town Manager Kutney responded that he would write to the owners requesting that they clean 
up the property 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2012-09.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 

Page26 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 8 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)     
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-10  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 
TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM IMPOSED THEREIN UNTIL MARCH 30, 
2013; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2012-10 by title, as printed above.  He noted that 
staff had commenced a review of the comprehensive plan, and more time was needed to 
complete that.  
 
The Public Hearing was opened. 
 
There was no one desiring to speak 
 
The Public Hearing was closed. 

 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett moved approval of Ordinance No. 2012-10 on first 
reading.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Liang.  The motion passed 5/0.  

 
 

 
b. Ordinance No. 2012-11 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE REZONING 
OF LAND CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.0028 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, 
APPROXIMATELY 350 FEET WEST OF “D” ROAD, AND 5.90 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT 14579 SOUTHERN BOULEVARD, 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AND AS 
DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS 
ORDINANCE, FROM PALM BEACH COUNTY ZONING DESIGNATION 
GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) TO THE TOWN’S ZONING DESIGNATION 

Page27 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 9 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

COMMERCIAL LOW (CL); PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATE 
REVISIONS OF THE ZONING DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2012-11 by title, as printed above.   
 
Town Planning Consultant Fleischmann provided the staff report, advising that staff 
recommended approval. 
 
Motion: Council Member Liang made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2012-11 on 
first reading. The motion was seconded by Council Member Jarriel.  The motion passed 
5/0. 
 
 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
 a. Resolution No. 2012-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF 
THE “UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE” ; 
PROVIDING FOR DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE; PROVIDNG FOR THE 
METHOD OF APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEE MEMBERS; PROVIDING 
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH FLORIDA’S SUNSHINE LAW AND PUBLIC 
RECORDS LAW; PROVIDING FOR PROCEDURAL MATTERS OF THE 
COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR SUNSETTING OF THE COMMITTEE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that the Town Council had directed the preparation of a resolution 
to create a committee to review the land development code.  He explained the details of the 
resolution.  All Unified Land Development Codes changes would need to go back to the 
Planning & Zoning Board for recommendations to the Town Council.     
 
Attorney Cirullo noted that the Resolution did not provide for the appointment of alternate 
members, nor did it address attendance problems.  He stated that the Town Council could choose 
to pass it now or amend it, and staff will bring it back. 
 

Page28 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 10 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Town Manager Kutney noted that there was a sunset provision of December 31, 2013,  in the 
Resolution.  He referred to his Agenda Report, with Work Authorization No. 12-04  in the 
amount of $16,475.00 for the Town Management Company to undertake the required activities 
and ultimate completion of the committee.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2012-19 with the 
amendment to Section 2.I.(b) of the Resolution (Amended to read:  Each member of the 
Unified Land Development Code Review Committee shall be an elector of the Town).  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Rd:  Commented regarding the structure of the ULDC Committee. 
 
Discussion then took place regarding the number of members that would compose the 
Committee, and the method of operating. 
 
Town Manager Kutney suggested that staff would prepare an agenda and divide it up to a cap of 
18 meetings.  A section of the Code would be reviewed at each meeting, with the history 
provided, as well as any problems that have occurred.  Any information provided to him by the 
Town Council could be incorporated in the information presented to the Committee; the 
Committee could request further information, and that is how he saw the process working.  
 
Vice Mayor Rockett expressed concern with adding committees to the list of things to do, noting 
that there was a limit, and that there were now eight or nine meetings per month.  
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that if cost was a factor, an alternative would be to reserve the 
second meeting of the Town Council each month for review of the ULDC.   
 
Public Comments: 
 
Virginia Standish, 15140 North Rd.:  Commented regarding the ULDC Committee; that there are 
people willing to help.  
 
Larry Lefkowitz, 3485 “D” Rd.:  Commented regarding the motivation behind creating a ULDC 
Committee. 
 
Mayor Browning commented that it was the hope that residents would contact staff and the 
Town Council with issues relating to the ULDC.  Then the committee could work on those.  
  

Page29 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 11 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Marge Herzog, 966 “A” Rd.:  Commented regarding the contract and duties of the present 
Management Company.  
 
Cassie Suchy, “B” Rd.:  Commented regarding the rules and protocols involved with 
committees, and suggested an open forum for suggestions that the committee could then 
consider.  
 
Discussion took place regarding how the committee would look at subjects.  It was suggested 
that one mechanism of controlling the volume of work would be for the Town Council to tell the 
Committee the items on which it needed advice. The first step would be to determine those 
items. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett added to his motion to adopt Resolution 2012-19, as 
amended (Amended to read:  Each member of the Unified Land Development Code Review 
Committee shall be an elector of the Town); to include that the subject matter for the 
Committee would come from the Town Council through the Town Manager.  The seconder 
of the motion agreed.     
 
Town Manager Kutney clarified that the Town Council would identify priorities.  
 
Mayor Browning stated that we are talking about doing the areas we have problems with.  We 
need to go through and customize what we need to take care of.  I am not looking to re-address 
the whole thing. 
 
The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
 
*********A brief break was taken at 8:55 p.m. – the meeting resumed at 9:01 p.m.**********  
 
 
 
 
 
Motion:  Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve Work Authorization 12-04, in the 
amount of $16,475.00.  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Rockett. 
 

Page30 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 12 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Council Member Goltzené commented that the review of the ULDC was not government light, 
and that if we are going to work toward government light, it is going to cost us something to get 
there. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Marge Herzog, 966 “A” Rd.:  Commented with concerns that the Management Contract was not 
being fulfilled, and that audio posting and a newsletter had been paid for and not fulfilled, and 
that it was time to say no.  
 
Councilman Goltzené responded that the work authorization was being discussed at this time, 
and that he was quite satisfied with the work that Underwood Management was doing.   
 
Vice Mayor Rockett commented that one problem is that it is strange in the years that we had 
prior management companies, none of the issues were raised about lack of things being done, 
and there had been a lack of things being done.  Both videos and audios were being posted on the 
web, which was more than what was called for in the current management contract.   
 
The motion to approve Work Authorization 12-04 passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
 
 

b. Resolution No. 2012-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET AMENDENT 
FOR THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2011, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2012; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo read Resolution 2012-20 by title, as printed above. 
 
Motion: Council Member Liang made a motion to approve Resolution No. 2012-20.  
The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Rockett.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

Page31 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 13 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
 
Town Manager Kutney reported that there was still a member vacancy on the Finance Advisory 
& Audit Committee (FAAC).  He advised that there was a vacancy for alternate #2 on the 
Planning and Zoning Board.  The alternate #1 position was currently held by Veronica Close, 
and her appointment had been for one year, and she needed to be reappointed. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to reappoint Veronica Close as alternate 
#1 on the Planning and Zoning Board for another year.  The motion was seconded by 
Council Member Goltzené.  The motion passed 5/0.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Marge Herzog, 966 “A” Rd.: Commented that Byrnes Guillaume had made a request to be on the 
Planning and Zoning Board.  
 
Mayor Browning replied that his name had been brought up for the FAAC to take Ken Johnson’s 
place.  Mayor Browning said that he would also like to see a list of potential people for vacant 
board/committee positions. 
 
Town Manager Kutney responded that he would check with Mr. Guillaume, and that notices 
were on the Town website and in Town Hall for board/committee vacancies.   
 
Town Manager Kutney reported that the Town had received a perfect compliance letter from the 
State of Florida, Department of Financial Services for its TRIM documents.  
 
Town Manager Kutney referred to the Tri-City Barbeque, and advised that the Town staff would 
RSVP for everyone.  He addressed the upcoming Holiday Parade, and discussion took place 
regarding specifics. 
 
Town Manager Kutney referred to the Community of Hope outdoor event; the annual Christmas 
event.  He noted that staff had met recently with Billy Langley regarding the requirement for a 
special event, and there was not time to go through the formal approval process.  He requested 
that the Town Council allow staff to review the application, administratively approve it, and 
bring it back to the Town Council at the December 4, 2012, Town Council meeting for approval. 
  
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that when the issue came up there was dialogue that it would be 
considered a zoning in progress, and when the ULDC was re-done, we would make the code 
match that.  The Town Council had previously given the prior management company authority to 
review these types of applications. 

Page32 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 14 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
Mayor Browning commented that he thought that there had been a kind of special consideration 
for this event every year. 
 
Billy Langley, representing Community Of Hope 14055 Okeechobee Blvd.:  Commented  
regarding the outdoor event and that the Community of Hope wanted to do it the right way, and 
had gotten information ready for the Town.    There had been previous years when traffic had 
been a real issue, and improvements had been made in handling that traffic.  He reviewed some 
of the details of the traffic plan.   The program had also been changed so that people could leave 
the parking lot much sooner than previous years.  There would be peak times, but he believed 
there will be a major improvement in those peak times and traffic issues.   
 
Town Manager Kutney noted that he had advised Mr. Langley that the Town handled these types 
of permits with cost recovery, and had indicated that he could not waive those costs, and that Mr. 
Langley was free to address it with the Town Council.   
 
Council Member Goltzené and Council Member Jarriel stated that they would like to see the 
Town waive the costs. 
  
Town Manager Kutney recommended to the Town Council that they approve this subject to staff 
review and if there is any issue with insurance, etc., and if there is anything that has to come 
back to you then we will bring it back to the Town Council at the December 4, 2012 Town 
Council meeting.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve this application, subject to 
staff review, and any additional information would be brought back to the December 4, 
2012, Town Council meeting.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Jarriel.  The 
motion carried 5/0. 
 
 
 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. WBI Contracting Invoice 
 
Town Manager Kutney addressed the invoices from WBI Contracting of Palm Beach, Inc., for 
emergency repair and response work during the recent storm.  He explained that the Town was 
being asked to cover this expense by the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD), 
even though the Town Manager had not been consulted about the work.  After discussion with 

Page33 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 15 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

LGWCD Administrator Saunier, Mr. Saunier had indicated that communication with the Town 
had been overlooked by LGWCD and that it was his understanding that without immediate 
response, the situation would have continued to deteriorate and result in more property damage, 
and the oversight was not intentional. The total cost of the invoices was $2,177.00.  
 
Motion: Council Member Jarriel made a motion to approve reimbursing the 
LGWCD for the invoices from WBI Contracting of Palm Beach invoices in the amount of 
$2,177.00.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  The motion passed 5/0.   
 
Vice Mayor Rockett clarified that in this type of situation, unless Town Manager Kutney  or his 
staff was contacted, the LGWCD  should not be doing this work.  This was the last time  
invoices would be approved without the proper procedures being followed.  
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Renewal Agreements (Bergeron Emergency Services, Inc. Extension Agreement; C & C 
Loader Service, Inc. Extension Agreement, Tag Grinding Services, Inc. Extension 
Agreement; O’Brien’s Response Management, Inc. Extension Agreement)  

 
Town Manager Kutney reviewed the debris/disaster agreements. He noted that all of them allow 
for an additional one year term, and there were no cost increases. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve the renewal agreements for 
Bergeron Emergency Services, Inc., C & C Loader Service, Tag Grinding Services, Inc., 
and O’Brien’s Response Management.  The motion was seconded by Council Member 
Jarriel.    
 
Public Comment: 
 
Frank Schiola:  Commented regarding any assignment clause that may be in the agreements.  
Town Manager Kutney advised that he would review that. 
 
The motion passed 5/0. 

 
 
 
 
 
b. Rescheduling of January 1, 2013 Town Council Meeting 

Page34 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 16 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
Town Manager Kutney reviewed the options for rescheduling the January 1, 2013, Town 
Council meeting, and  recommended meeting on January 15, 2013.   
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council to cancel the Town Council meeting scheduled 
for January 1, 2013, and re-schedule the meeting for January 15, 2013. 

 
 
 
c. Motion and Agreement on Roadway Issue as a Result of the Joint Meeting of the Town 

of Loxahatchee Groves Town Council and the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control 
District Held on October 16, 2012. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo referred to the Joint Workshop meeting held on October 15, 2012 and 
noted that it was the consensus to start the process of transitioning whatever rights the LGWCD 
has to public roads to the Town.  It was directed to come back with an appropriate motion.  
Attorney Cirullo noted that the consensus had been to begin the process with the transfer of the 
roads that were surfaced with Open-Graded Emulsified Mix (OGEM).  Those roads were 
identified at the Workshop as: 
 
The four roads listed in Chapter 2011-257, Laws of Florida (“Special Act”): 
 

 A” Road from Okeechobee Boulevard to North Road, and North Road for approximately 
¼ mile east of “A”; 

 “C” Road South, from Collecting Canal Road to Okeechobee Blvd., and Collecting Canal 
approximately ¼ mile each direction from “C” Road; 

 “C” Road North from Okeechobee Blvd. to North Road and North Road for 
approximately ¼ mile each direction form “C” Road; and, 

 “D” Road from Okeechobee Blvd. to North Road and North Road approximately ¼ mile 
each direction from “D” Road; 

 Marcella Boulevard; and, 
 Compton Road 

 
He also noted that in reviewing the issue with the LGWCD Board of Supervisors, Bryan Road 
also came up.  The district may not have any rights on that road, but the thought process was to 
put that on the list so that it could be confirmed. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo read the motion into the record. 
 

Page35 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 17 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Motion to assign, transfer or otherwise convey as necessary, District rights in certain roads 
to the  Town and to authorize Town Administration and Town Attorney to coordinate and 
develop the plan of action necessary to accomplish such, and report back to the Town 
Council, for the following roads:  North A Road, North C Road, South C Road, North D 
Road, Upper North Road, F Road, Marcella Boulevard, Compton Road and Bryan Road. 
 
Councilman Liang moved approval of the motion.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Jarriel. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that it was his understanding that certain funds were borrowed 
by the District for maintenance or re-surfacing, and questioned whether the Town was taking 
responsibility for that as well. 
 
Attorney Cirullo replied that the reason the motion was structured like it was is that there are 
going to be a lot of issues to resolve, but direction was needed before staff could undertake that 
work.   
 
The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
Public Comment: 

 
Virginia Standish,15140 North Rd.:  commented regarding the joint workshop and specific 
roadways; reviewing surveys, especially for North Road; what Town ownership of the roads 
would entail. She said that people wanted to know if they would be reimbursed for what they 
paid on their tax bill, or was the Town just going to take over the debt.  She clarified that the 
people paid the tax bill for the OGEMing of roads, and the Town would not get easements 
without compensating the owners. She stated that she did not hear a definition for the term 
“public”.  Horses and cattle still had the right of way in this State.  
 
Town Manager Kutney referred to the fact that the Town Council had floated the idea of paying 
$360,000 for the purpose of satisfying the debt for the OGEM project, and that was turned down 
by the LGWCD.  Now, that was open for review and staffs were working to see how that will be 
addressed when the Town takes over the roads.   
 
Councilman Goltzené stated that the Town Council had never made a decision to OGEM any 
road other than North Rd. and Collecting Canal  All others had been citizen initiated or done 
through the County.  The Town was only assuming maintenance responsibilities from the 
LGWCD with the goal of bringing a unified system under one roof. 
 

Page36 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 18 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

 
 
d. Compton Road Issue 
 

Town Manager Kutney reported that this issue had been brought forward at the October 2, 2012, 
Town Council meeting, and that he had been quite concerned as a result and went to the area in 
question on October 4, 2012, accompanied by Councilman Goltzené.  He provided photos of the 
area, noting that there had not been any standing water on the properties, and that the west part of 
the culvert had been stopped up, but cleared when Mr. Goltzené moved the dirt and debris.  The 
water started moving, and the area was now bone dry.  There was vegetation in the ditch, and if 
the residents wanted the Town to remove that, it could be added to the list of projects.  His 
recommendation was to put it on the list and try to work on it; it did not seem necessary to do 
anything immediately.    
 
Discussion took place regarding roadway elevation, fixing the problems before the next rainy 
season, the LGWCD ensuring that drains into their canals were clear; the importance of getting 
an RFP for services so that there would be someone available to do the work when it was 
needed. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Joe Hosford, 13244 Compton Rd.:  Commented that the issue was not the end of the canal; after 
the storm he couldn’t get his mail for five days, and had problems for five weeks.  The middle of 
the road was the worst area because people do not clean out their drainage ditches.   
 
Frank Schiola, 13434 Marcella Blvd.:  Commented that the”F” road culvert had been totally 
blocked during the storm, and both sides of it had been cleaned out.  He spoke about collapsed 
culverts, the low road, and culvert pipes.  He noted that there was a lot of water on Compton and 
the water had no place to go.   
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Mayor Browning read a comment card from Linda Isaacs, 12881 Marcella Blvd., into the record, 
as requested by Ms. Isaacs, regarding revisiting an ordinance related to vegetation on the streets, 
and property owners being billed for removal. 
 

Page37 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 19 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd.:  Commented regarding a presentation by Land Design 
South at the Palm Beach County Convention Center.  

 
 
b. Town Attorney 
 
 1. Proposed letter regarding Attorney General Opinion 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo presented the request for an Attorney General Opinion for review and 
authorization to forward to the Attorney General. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett questioned a citing referred to in the letter, and Town Attorney Cirullo 
verified that it was correct.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to authorize Town Attorney Cirullo to 
forward the  letter to the Attorney General.  The motion was seconded by Council Member 
Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Vice Mayor Rockett:  Thanked everyone and Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Council Member Liang:  Thanks for coming and Happy Holidays. 
 
Council Member Jarriel: Asked about monthly newslettters. Town Manager Kutney responded 
that the first newsletter that had been done had been quite costly.  Discussion had taken place 
about a newsletter that may be generated from the new website.  Council Member Jarriel 
suggested one important newsletter at the beginning of the year to say what had been 
accomplished in the past year and what would be accomplished in the next year.  
 
Council Member Goltzené:  Commented that a lot of criticisms come from sources that were 
close with previous Town Management firms.  Thanked everyone for coming to the meeting. 
 
Mayor Browning:  Commented that he had received a comment from a resident who feels that 
he has no place to put his clippings and yard stuff.  He noted that he had received a call from a 
resident on “A” Road saying that some of the equestrians have not closed her gate and it might 
be good to have an open fence for people to get their horses through there.  People are now going 
through the fence and not putting it back up.  Council Member Jarriel commented that the west 

Page38 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
     TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes    Page 20 of 20 
11/20/2012 
 

side of the canal is our future equestrian trial.  To fence off her five acres would not be expensive 
and it would protect her property and that way we would be paying part of the request.  
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Town Council meeting of November 20, 2012, was 
adjourned at 10:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn     David Browning 
Town Clerk      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved by the 
Town Council on Tuesday,  March 5, 2013 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page39 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 1 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
Town Council Meeting 

Tuesday, December 4, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)    Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)    Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)    Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)         
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Upon roll call, those present were Mayor 
David Browning, Vice Mayor Jim Rockett, and Council Members Tom Goltzené, Ronald Jarriel and 
Ryan Liang.  Also present were:  Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Planning Consultant Jim 
Fleischmann, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., and Town Clerk Susan Eichhorn. 

 
 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 
Motion: Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Goltzené.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
 

Page40 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 2 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 

 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Liang.  The motion passed 5/0/.  
 
 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 
 
 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
  

a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report and Approval of the October 2012 
Financial report – Vice Chair Elise Ryan 

 
Elise Ryan provided the FAAC Report. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to approve the FAAC Report.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Liang.  The motion passed 5/0.  
 
 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading)– 
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-10  
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-06 
TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM IMPOSED THEREIN UNTIL MARCH 30, 
2013; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney  read Ordinance No. 2012-10 by title, as printed above. 
 
Mayor Browning opened the Public Hearing. 

Page41 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 3 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
There was no one desiring to speak.  
 
Mayor Browning closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2012-10.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Liang.  The motion passed 5/0.  
 
 

b. Ordinance No. 2012-11 – Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR THE 
REZONING OF LAND CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 1.0028 
ACRES MORE OR LESS OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD, APPROXIMATELY 350 FEET WEST OF “D” ROAD, AND 
5.90 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT 14579 SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED AND AS DESIGNATED ON THE MAP ATTACHED AS 
EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS ORDINANCE, FROM PALM BEACH COUNTY 
ZONING DESIGNATION GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) TO THE 
TOWN’S ZONING DESIGNATION COMMERCIAL LOW (CL); 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPROPRIATE REVISIONS OF THE ZONING 
DISTRICT MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that this matter was quasi-judicial, and would require four 
affirmative votes to be adopted.  He read Ordinance No. 2012-11 by title, as printed above.  He 
then administered the oath to all those who would be speaking to this item. 
  
Since the Town was the applicant, staff then provided the staff report, through Town Planning 
Consultant Jim Fleischmann.  After providing the report, Mr. Fleischmann stated that staff 
recommended approval. 
 
Mayor Browning requested public comment.  There was none 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2012-11.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  On roll call vote, the motion passed 5/0.  
 

Page42 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 4 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  
 

a. Public Hearing: 
 
 

Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” 
SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION 
FOR “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 20, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 
20-015, ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE SUBJECT 
TO ARTICLE 80 (CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; TO AMEND ARTICLE 80, 
ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO ADD A NEW SECTION 80-60, 
ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES,” TO 
PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND 
SERVICES USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING 
DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Manager Kutney provided background information regarding the ordinance.  Town 
Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann provided the staff report. 
 
Councilman Goltzené requested that the ordinance be delayed until next month, so that he would 
have additional time to review portions of it. 
 
Motion: Councilman Goltzene made a motion to continue this item to the January 15, 
2013 Town Council meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Liang. 
 
Discussion took place, and Vice Mayor Rockett suggested moving forward with the ordinance 
tonight, as any changes could be made on second reading.   

Page43 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 5 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that any changes made at second reading could not affect the 
core subject of the ordinance.   
 
The motion to continue this item, Ordinance No. 2012-12, to the January 15, 2013 Town 
Council meeting passed 4/1 with Vice Mayor Rockett opposed. 
 
 
 
 

 
b. Ordinance  No. 2012-13 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO ELECTIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR VACANCY IN CANDIDACY PROCEDURES; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2012-13 by title, as printed above. He explained that 
he requested that this ordinance deals with a situation where someone would qualify to run for a 
Town Council seat and then dropped off the campaign.  This ordinance provides a mechanism 
for the Town to deal with this type of issue.  If the Town was left with zero candidates and the 
inability to re-open qualifying, there was the ability to appoint someone to sit in that seat until 
the next year’s election. 
 
 
Motion: Councilman Liang made a motion to approve Ordinance No. 2012-13, on 
first reading.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
 a.  Resolution No. 2012-21 

Page44 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 6 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, DESIGNATING THE DATE, TIME 
AND PLACE TO QUALIFY AND FILE FOR THE OFFICE OF TOWN 
COUNCIL MEMBER FOR SEATS 2 AND 4 PRIOR TO THE MUNICIPAL 
GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2013, 
PURSUANT TO THE TOWN CHARTER AND CHAPTERS 97 – 106, FLORIDA 
STATUTES; THE ELECTION FILING PERIOD OPENS PROMPTLY AT 12:00 
NOON ON JANUARY 29, 2013 AND CLOSES PROMPTLY AT 12:00 NOON ON 
FEBRUARY 5, 2013; SETTING FILING FEES; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 
CLERK TO APPOINT ELECTION BOARDS FOR ELECTION PRECINCT 6094;  
AUTHORIZING THE SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS TO CONDUCT THE 
TOWN ELECTION AND APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
TOWN AND THE PALM BEACH COUNTY SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS 
FOR ELECTION SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN CLERK OR 
DESIGNEE TO HANDLE CERTAIN ELECTION MATTERS; OPTING OUT OF 
EARLY VOTING; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained that this annual Resolution sets forth the parameters of the 
municipal election, and confirms the agreement with the Supervisor of Elections of Palm Beach 
County.  He noted that there would be some changes this year in regard to the Canvassing Board.  
He read Resolution No. 2012-21 by title, as printed above. 
 
Motion: Council Member Liang made a motion to approve Resolution 2012-21.  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Goltzené.  The motion passed 5/0.       
 
 
 
 
b. Resolution No. 2012-22 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR 
PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE’S NEW LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
CAMPUS WITHIN THE TOWN, AND STRONG OPPOSITION TO THE 
INITIATIVE EFFORT TO REPEAL THE TOWN ORDINANCES 2012-
04 AND 2012-05 WHICH COLLECTIVELY AMENDED THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN PURSUANT TO THE EXCLUSIVE 

Page45 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 7 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

PROCEEDINGS IN CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
APPROVED THE CHANGE IN LAND USE FOR THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY TO ACCOMMODATE THE NEW CAMPUS AND 
CREATED SPECIAL POLICIES TO REGULATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CAMPUS; URGING THE PETITION 
COMMITTEE TO DISBAND AND RESCIND THE EFFORT; 
ADVISING THE RESIDENTS AND COMMUNITY OF THE ADVERSE 
IMPACTS ON THE TOWN AND ITS RESIDENTS AND PROPERTY 
OWNERS SHOULD THE REFERENDUM PROCEED; REQUESTING 
THAT A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION BE POSTED ON THE 
TOWN’S WEBSITE, AND THAT COPIES BE DELIVERED TO PALM 
BEACH STATE COLLEGE AND MEDIA OUTLETS; PROVIDING 
FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo stated that he had prepared this Resolution at the request of the Town 
Council.  He read the Resolution No. 2012-22 by title, as printed above.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené moved that the size of this Resolution be reduced, to 
indicate that the Town Council affirms its vote in favor of the college and leave it at that.  
 
Mayor Browning asked if there was second?  There was not, and the motion failed for lack 
of a second. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett moved approval of Resolution No. 2101-22.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.    
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Rd.: Commented regarding the Palm Beach State College issue, the 
decision of the Town Council, the rights of the residents to be heard. 
 
Ken Johnson, Collecting Canal Rd:  Commented that he thanks people for their support while he 
was absent; supported the college, urged the Town Council to analyze and deal with traffic 
control.    
 
Lung Chiu, 3270 “B” Road:   Commented in support of the college.  
 
John Ryan, 3508 “A” Road:   Commented in regard to the petition to repeal the ordinances 
approving the location of the college; commented regarding the legality of the petition, the 

Page46 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 8 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

public meetings that had been hold prior to approval of the ordinances, and the costs that may be 
incurred with a referendum. 
  
Phil Liu, 4245 148 Terrace North:  Commented that it was important for people to remember that 
just because people do not agree with the Town Council does not mean that it is incorrect; they 
were elected to represent the citizens.   
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Drive:  Commented that she wished to clarify some things:  
said that we tried to tell you what we felt before;  she maintained that when the college was 
approved, there were more comment cards against than in favor;  she referred to F.S. 
163.3167(8). 
    
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Road:   Commented in support of the college, and noted that the 
location was not in the Groves, but on the edge of the Groves, along Southern Blvd.  
 
The motion to approve Resolution No. 2012-22 passed 4/1, with Councilman Goltzené in 
opposition.   
 
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
 Town Manager Kutney reported that the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District  

(LGWCD) was going through transition, and meetings of the Intergovernmental 
Coordination Committee (IGC) would not be scheduled until January/February 2013. He 
requested approval and comments regarding that.   

 
After discussion, it was the consensus of the Town Council to agree with that scheduling. 
 
Councilman Jarriel commented that he believed the Town Council needed to have input as to 
what was being looked for in an LGWCD administrator.   
 
 Town Manager Kutney then referred to the Community of Hope application, and requested 

consideration of the Town Council.  He explained that any approval would be conditional, 
because of some conditions that had not yet been met, regarding a performance bond, and 
traffic management.  He noted that he had conveyed the point to the Community of Hoppe 
that in 5-6 months when the Town had permit issues resolved, staff would be dealing with 
matters such as this from a much stronger standpoint.  He advised that any approval would be 
a conditional approval, based on staff concerns regarding conditions that were not met. 

 

Page47 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 9 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

After discussion, regarding the performance bond, the nature of the event,  the concerns related 
to selective enforcement of the Code, it was the consensus of the Town Council to approve the 
administrative conditional approval of the holding of the event. 
 
Councilman Jarriel suggested that, after the event was over, he would like residents to let the 
Town Council and staff  know how it went. 
 
Marge Herzog, 966 “A” Road:  Commented that when the Loxahatchee Land Owners group 
worked cleaning the roadsides in the area, they were always asked by their insurance company to 
provide a save harmless. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that, unless the Town Council said otherwise, it had now been 
reported to them that it would be administratively approved without the performance bond and 
Palm Beach Sheriff’s Office documentation. 
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council to allow the conditional administrative approval 
for the Community of Hope event. 
 
 Town Manager Kutney presented the Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting 

received by the Town from the Government Finance Officers Association. 
 
 
 
  
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion of Code Enforcement – Council Member Ron Jarriel 
 

Councilman Jarriel commented regarding the mulching and chipping businesses in Town, with 
material coming from other areas, and then being dumped in Loxahatchee Groves.  He noted that 
the materials were being piled up, and some could cause spontaneous combustion.  He also 
suggested that there must be a turnaround time for people dumping things in Loxahatchee 
Groves. He addressed the problems with the foreclosures in the Town, citing Vila & Sons as one 
that most troubled him. 

 
 

Page48 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 10 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

Public Comment: 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd.:  Commented regarding asphalt dumping and whether the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) had been contacted.  As far as Vila & Sons, she suggested that maybe the Town Council 
should buy the property and flip it and make some money. 
 
Ken Johnson, Collecting Canal Rd.:  Commented regarding trash pick-up when there are no 
residences located on property and the properties are still paying residential rates.  
 
Town Manager Kutney commented that, regarding foreclosures, unless there was a complaint 
from someone, staff could not do anything as far as Code enforcement was concerned.  As far as 
the ag items that Councilman Jarriel had discussed, an Attorney General Opinion in regard to ag 
was in progress.  If the Town Council wanted to direct staff to review some particular items, staff 
would be happy to do that.  He cautioned the Town Council that in Florida, the code enforcement 
process was not pretty and it was not quick. The idea was to ensure compliance and compliance 
did not happen quickly.   
 
Discussion took place regarding code enforcement.  Mayor Browning stated that when a problem 
was brought up at a Town Council meeting, it should be considered a complaint.  Discussion also 
took place regarding proactive monitoring of commercially zoned properties.  It was the 
consensus of the Town Council to proceed with complaint driven code enforcement for most of 
the Town; if there is a danger issue that is brought to the Town Council, staff would treat that as 
a written complaint, and for zoned commercial properties the Town Council wanted proactive 
monitoring. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that something was needed in place to provide for the cleaning 
up of properties on Southern Blvd. 
 
Public Comment: 

 
Howard Voren, 1538 “E” Rd.: Commented that he did not understand giving ag 
classifications to chipping and mulching operations that haul material in that is grown 
elsewhere.  
 
John Ryan 3508 A Rd.:  Commented regarding the property being discussed with piles of 
material on it, and suggested that the owner could put up a bond, so that if the property is 
abandoned, the material could be disposed of.  He suggested that it ought to be a legitimate 
concern of the Town. 
  

Page49 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 11 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:   Commented regarding code enforcement issues. 
  
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Rd.:  Commented regarding code enforcement issues. 
  
Councilman Jarriel commented that he would at least like to start with the Vila & Sons 
property, and the person dumping asphalt on property 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that he would appreciate a motion as it relates to policy 
direction for Town Council approval on January 15, 2013. 
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to direct proactive code enforcement on 
commercially zoned property.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Goltzené.  
The motion passed 4/1, with Council Member Liang in opposition.  
 

 
 
b. Discussion of Town Council Salary – Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
Councilman Goltzené advised that there was a salary survey included in the agenda packet, 
from selected cities in the State of Florida.  He also referred to a newspaper article with 
salary surveys of various cities in Palm Beach County.  He explained that right now there 
was no compensation for the Town of Loxahatchee Town Council, and that is out of line 
with most municipalities in Palm Beach County.  He stated that he thought the lack of 
salaries detracted from the pool of people that want to serve, and that he felt that he, and 
other members of the Town Council do a significant amount of work and should be 
compensated.  He referred to the section of the Town Charter regarding compensation and 
expenses for Town Council members. 
 
Councilman Jarriel agreed with Councilman Goltzené; Councilman Liang suggested more 
discussion on the matter; Vice Mayor Rockett commented that he did not want to be 
considered an employee of the Town and suggested some other form of payment, rather than 
a salary   
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that staff would like direction.  One option would be to have a 
stipend or car allowance.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo encouraged giving some general direction as to what the ultimate 
goal would be, since there was a time factor; discussion could take place at the January 15, 
2013, Town Council meeting, and an ordinance could be brought back at the two meetings in 

Page50 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 12 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

February. The ordinance would have to specify what that salary was; even a stipend may 
come with the same issues as a salary.     

 
Town Manager Kutney summarized that staff was being authorized to look into the 
mechanics of compensation and report back, as well as to identify if there were any 
additional costs involved. 
 
 
Public Comment: 
 
John Ryan, 3508 “A” Rd.:  Commented in support of Town Council compensation.  
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:  Commented in support of Town Council 
compensation.   
 
Lung Chiu, 3270 “B” Rd.:    Commented in support of Town Council compensation. 
 
 
 
c. Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) Committee appointments 
 
The members of the Town Council provided their appointees for the ULDC Committee: 
 
 
Council Member Liang:  has not yet decided 
Council Member Jarriel:  Howard Voren 
Council Member Goltzené:  Virginia Standish 
Vice Mayor Rockett:  John Ryan 
Mayor Browning:  Beck Hyslop 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that the committee could start with the four members named 
tonight.  Town Attorney Cirullo noted that before the fifth person could participate in the 
meetings, he or she would need to be formally appointed at a public meeting.  The fifth 
member could attend, but could not participate as a member of the board until formally 
appointed. 
 
In response to Council Member Goltzené, Town Attorney Cirullo advised that he did not see 
a conflict with the appointment of John Ryan as a result of his relationship with the LGWCD; 
the individual would make that call. 
 

Page51 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 13 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
 
 
d. Appointment of Byrnes Guilluame as alternate member #2 of Planning and Zoning 

Board. 
  
Town Manager Kutney advised that the Town Clerk had confirmed with Mr. Guilluame that he 
was interested in serving as alternate member #2 on the Planning and Zoning Board.   
 
Vice Mayor Rockett expressed concern regarding some comments that had been attributed to Mr. 
Guilluame during the past municipal election.  Council Member Liang stated that he had been 
disappointed in the comments, however, if Mr. Guilluame was willing to serve the Town, he was 
willing to give him that opportunity. 
 
Motion: Council Member Liang made a motion to appoint Byrnes Guillaume as 
alternate #2 on the Planning and Zoning Board.  The motion was seconded by Council 
Member Goltzené.  The motion passed 5/0.   
 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
 
Rob Robinson American Legion Post # 367 commented that they were ready to go forward, and 
that he would like to meet with any residents that have any concerns, and that he would wait 
outside after the meeting to discuss it.  He noted that he would be addressing the Planning and 
Zoning Board soon.  
 
Todd McLendon, 3481 “D” Rd.:  Commented regarding the initiative/petition regarding Palm 
Beach State College, stating that he wanted the people to vote on whether the college should be 
here or not, having an equal say so.  He referred to the comment that it was a waste of money, 
and maintained that it was not.  
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd.:  Commented regarding the discussion related to special 
event permits; if someone did not apply for a permit then would the Town not require one?  
Town Manager Kutney clarified that a special event is an outdoor event that would bring in 
people from all over to come into your site; he offered that staff would be reviewing that with the 
new ULDC Committee. 

Page52 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2012 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Minutes    Page 14 of 14 
12/04/2012 
 

 
Marge Herzog, 966 “A” Rd.:  Announced that Loxahatchee Groves Landowners Association 
would be  having a holiday event on December 20, 2012.   

 
b. Town Attorney 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo thanked everyone for the opportunity to provide services to the Town, 
and wished everyone a Happy New Year and Merry Christmas. 
  

c. Town Council Members 
 
Council Member Goltzené:  Thanked everyone for coming, and wished everyone a Merry 
Christmas, Happy New Year, Happy Chanukah. 
Council Member Jarriel:  Thanked everyone for coming, and wished everyone a Merry 
Christmas and Happy New Year. 
Council Member Liang:  Thanked everyone for coming; welcomed Ken Johnson back and 
wished everyone Happy Holidays 
Vice Mayor Rockett:  Thanked everyone for coming, and wished everyone Merry Christmas, 
Happy New year, and Happy Holidays.  
Mayor Browning:  Thanked everyone for coming, and wished everyone a Merry Christmas.  
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Town Council Meeting of December 4, 2012, was adjourned 
at 9:20 pm. 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn     David Browning 
Town Clerk      Mayor 
 
 
(SEAL) 

These minutes were approved by the 
Town Council on Tuesday, March 5, 2013 

Page53 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 5, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
 

 
 
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)   Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Jim Rockett (Seat 2)   Town Clerk Susan A. Eichhorn 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)   Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)         
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Upon roll call, those present were Mayor 
David Browning, Vice Mayor Jim Rockett, and Council Members Tom Goltzené, Ronald Jarriel and 
Ryan Liang.  Also present were:  Town Manager Mark Kutney, Town Planning Consultant Jim 
Fleischmann, Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., and Town Clerk Susan Eichhorn. 
 
 
 

 

Page54 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
Mayor Browning requested the addition of Item 10.d. to the Agenda – Small Business Land Use 
Discussion. 
 
Motion: Motion made by Vice Mayor Rockett to approve the Agenda as modified.  
The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel.  The motion passed 5/0. 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  

 
a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
b. Minutes for Approval:  January 15, 2013 
c. Municipal Election Agreement with Palms West Presbyterian Church 

 
Motion: Motion made by Vice Mayor Rockett to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 
motion was seconded by Council Member Liang.  The motion passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
3. PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Anna Stewart, Manager Drowning Prevention Coalition – Requested by Council Member 
Jarriel 

 
Anna Stewart addressed the Town Council explaining the services of the Drowning Prevention 
Coalition, and noting that the Coalition is partnered with the Palm Beach County Fire Rescue 
Volunteer Battalion, because they are a non-profit organization. 
 
Councilman Jarriel suggested a donation of $500 to the Drowning Coalition of Palm Beach 
County, with the donation provided to the Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Volunteer Battalion. 
 
Motion: Motion made by Councilman Jarriel, seconded by Councilman Liang to 
donate $500 to the Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Volunteer Battalion.  The motion 
passed 5/0.  

 
 
 
b. F. Martin Perry – presentation re:  PUD (Loxahatchee Groves Town Center) 
 

Page55 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Town Manager Kutney explained that the Town recently passed a PUD ordinance and one of the 
requirements was that the applicants appear before the Town Council to present their application.  
This was the first step in the process. 

 
Martin Perry addressed the Town Council, along with Bradley Miller, Planning Consultant. He 
presented a power point presentation to reintroduce the comprehensive plan amendment that was 
presented to the Town Council, and the final one that was approved. He then opened discussion 
by the Town Council or the public for comments or questions. 
 
Town Council discussion took place regarding the buffer, the proposed Town Center in the 
project, access points, turn lanes, and an assisted living facility. 

 
Public Comment: 

 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Rd.:  Commented with concerns regarding the 120 beds in the assisted 
living facility, development north of Tangerine, the number of access points on Southern Blvd, 
and commercial development in the Town.   
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Rd:  Commented regarding access points on Southern Blvd., and 
consideration of access from B Rd. in the future, once Southern Blvd. is widened.  

 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:  Commented in agreement with comments by Ms. Herzog 
and Mr. Voren, and that she is opposed. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo clarified that there is no action for the Town Council to take this evening.  
This was just a process in the PUD, and the same would apply for the next item.   

 
c.   Joe Lelonek – presentation re:  PUD (Loxahatchee Groves Commons) 
 

Bob Bentz, Land Design South, addressed the Town Council providing an overview of the 
commercial component of Simon Trust Property.  He explained that this presentation was given 
to the Town Council approximately one year ago, and since then there had been a few minor 
adjustments to it.  He presented a power point of the project, and discussed access points, 
proposed architectural style, parking - a waiver would be requested for parking space size to 
make the spaces smaller to 10 x 20 ft. access space, which would allow less asphalt on the 
property and open up more green space; there would be larger spaces available to accommodate 
larger vehicles, but not all of the spaces needed to be large.  The Department of Transportation 
had approved three accesses to the property.  He discussed paving of roadways, re-doing 
Collecting Canal crossing.  He then requested comments or questions.  
 

Page56 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Public Comment: 
 
Marsha Newell, 3508 C Rd.:  Commented regarding the development project and that the pubic 
needed to be made aware of it, and asked for their opinions.  
 
 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS  

 
a. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) Report and Approval of the November 

and December 2012 Financial Reports – Vice Chair Elise Ryan 
 

Elise Ryan provided the January 28, 2013 FAAC meeting approving the November/December          
financials.  The Committee had requested that the Town Council was made aware of the cost 
recovery accounts.  The current process is to require a payment from the applicant, and as costs 
occur, they are charged to the applicant’s account.  The Committee believed that the current cost 
recover process was not working, and recommended that staff is authorized to design a new fee 
schedule.  

 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd., speaking as member of FAAC, stated that cost recovery 
was a concern because there was not a set fee process in order to let land owners know what to 
expect in advance, and suggested that the Council give some comments to the FAAC so that the 
Committee could come back with some suggestions.   

 
Town Manager Kutney advised that he had contacted most of the people who are in arrears and 
most of them were willing to provide more money.  The alternate proposal that Elise and 
Virginia were talking about was the proposal that town management had given to the Town 
Council, and making a cost recovery ordinance is one of management’s priorities.  The only 
cost recovery account that had a problem was the Day property, and there was now a lawsuit in 
progress regarding the property.  He advised that if the Town Council directed staff to move 
forward and make this a higher priority, staff would be happy to do that. 
  
Lung Chiu, 3270 B Rd, and Chair of FAAC.:  Commented work was needed regarding cost 
recovery, and suggested that the Town Council direct town management to come back with a 
proposal and the Committee would be happy to go through it and make suggestions.   
 
Councilman Goltzené stated that he had confidence in Town Manager Kutney’s ability to work 
with the committee. 

 
Motion: Motion made by Vice Mayor Rockett to approve the report of the FAAC.  
The motion was seconded by Councilman Liang.  The motion passed 5/0.  

Page57 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

 
 
b. Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) appointment – Mayor Browning 

  
Mayor Browning appointed Ken Johnson to the FAAC . 

 
 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS (Ordinances 2nd Reading)– 
 
 

a. Ordinance No. 2012-12  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” 
SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION FOR 
“RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 20, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, 
ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 80 
(CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING 
DISTRICT; TO AMEND ARTICLE 80, ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO 
ADD A NEW SECTION 80-60, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES,” TO PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES USES IN THE AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo reminded all this was an ordinance on second reading, and that in order 
to be adopted at least four Town Council members would need to vote in the affirmative    
 
Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant addressed the Town Council, and noted that the 
Town Council approved the ordinance on first reading at its January 15, 2013, meeting, subject 
to three conditions. 
 

 Strike provisions regarding special exception approval for semi-trucks making deliveries. 

Page58 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

 Strike provisions limiting the number of employees to two. 
 Revise the hours of operation to: Monday through Saturday 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m. and on 

Sunday from 12:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
 

Mr. Fleischmann noted that the proposed ordinance language was on pages 61-64 of the Agenda 
Packet.  He noted that, unfortunately the changes that the Town Council required on first reading 
did not make it into this version of the proposed ordinance language, and he requested that the 
record be corrected at this time. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that it was up to the Town Council as to whether they wanted to 
proceed or not, because the agenda and back up did not have the updated version of the first 
reading comments.  If the Town Council was comfortable with the corrected record that was 
acceptable, however if the Town Council wanted to see those in writing, it could continue this 
matter to the March 5, 2013 Town Council meeting. 
 
Councilman Goltzené expressed concern that the language was not included in the Agenda 
Packet for people to read.  He recommended that there be no code enforcement action taken until 
the ordinance was finalized. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Road:  Commented regarding the fact that these are not agricultural 
sales, according to the state definition, but if you want to call these agricultural services, there is 
no argument, but you cannot call them agricultural sales, because the product is not produced on 
their farm where they are selling it.  Nobody has bothered to address what I see as a major flaw.   
 
After discussion, it was the consensus of the Town Council that the ordinance would be reviewed 
by the Unified Land Development Code Review Committee at its next meeting, February 21, 
2013.  Town Manager Kutney noted that if the title of the ordinance was then changed, the 
ordinance would need to come back to the Town Council for a second first reading. 
 
Motion: Councilman Liang made a motion for a continuation of Ordinance No. 2012-
12 to the March 5, 2013, Town Council meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Goltzené:  The motion passed 5/0.     
 

***A short recess was taken at 8:20 p.m.  The meeting resumed at 8:30 p.m.*** 
 

 
6. ORDINANCES  (1st Reading)  - Continued from December 4, 2012, Town Council Meeting 
 

Page59 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 7 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

a. Public Hearing: 
 
 Ordinance No. 2013-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
COMPENSATION FOR COUNCILMEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS,  SEVERABILITY,  AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that the Town Charter indicates that four votes are needed, to 
adopt this ordinance, and the ordinance will not take effect until after the next regular election; 
therefore, it would not take effect until April, 2013. 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo read Ordinance No. 2013-01 by title, as printed above. 
  
Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve Ordinance No.2013-01 on first 
reading.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel. 
 
Discussion too place.  The following public comments were heard: 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Marge Herzog, 966 A Rd.:  Commented that she agreed with an amount of $250.00 per month. 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Road:  Commented regarding compensation.   
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road:  Commented regarding compensation of $500.00, and that whatever 
the Town Council decided was acceptable.  
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road:  Commented that she had analyzed the data, and came up 
with $275 as compensation; it was looked at as an allowance, not compensation.   
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:  Commented that she admired the work that some of you 
do, and agreed with $500.00. 
 
Lung Chiu, 3270 B Rd.:  Commented that $500 is very minimal, and those who needed it could 
keep it and those that did not could donate it back to the Town.   
 

Page60 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 8 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

The motion to approve Ordinance 2013-01 on first reading passed 4/1 with Vice Mayor 
Rockett opposed. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that when the ordinance came back for second reading, it would 
require four votes to be adopted.  
 
 
 
7.   RESOLUTIONS   
 
 
8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

 
Town Manager Kutney reported on the following: 
 
 ULDC Review Committee meeting on January 30, 2013.   
 RETGAC meeting on January 31, 2013.  Mr. Kutney reported that at the January 31, 2013, 

meeting, a motion was made by Dr. Bill Louda to approve the Committee’s recommendation 
to the Town Council that within a reasonable time frame, example six months from February 
5, 2013, the Town should not supply any money for the maintenance and/or improvement of 
any non-district road, until the “Right of Way Easement” for that road is legally transferred 
to the Town. Committee Member Kathy Strehlow seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 

 January 28 Chamber Luncheon where award was received for best decorated vehicle. 
 Invitation to bid for grading 
 RFP for town engineering 
 Meeting with Palm Beach County engineering to discuss traffic signal at Okeechobee and B 

Rd. 
 Read a statement from Lt. Combs relating to a woman doing panhandling in the Town.  Lt. 

Combs advises calling sheriff’s office at 688-3400.  
 Request by Chairman of Planning & Zoning regarding committee member Lawrence 

Corning who has missed 5 meetings; ordinance 2012-02 sub paragraph 5 addresses reasons 
for removal of any member of board.   

  
 
Comments: 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that Mr. Corning has had some issues with the health of one of 
his children, and asked for Town Council leniency. 
 

Page61 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 9 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Discussion took place regarding liability insurance requirements. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road:  Commented regarding the liability insurance requirement, noting that 
the LGWCD coverage falls into the sovereign immunity category, and it is limited to that 
liability amount of $200,000 before sovereign immunity kicks in.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo explained that all bidders must meet the same requirements, and that he 
would review this with town management.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
Marsha Newell, 3508 C Rd.:  Commented regarding a woman requesting money and entering 
private property. 
 
  
9.  OLD BUSINESS  
 
 a. Discussion of Initiative Petition – Requested by Council Member Goltzené  
 
Councilman Goltzené requested an update on the initiative petition.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that as of yesterday afternoon a number of signatures were turned 
in to the Town Clerk, which is the first step of the process for the citizen’s initiative.  The Town 
Clerk is working with the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections to confirm signatures and 
that they meet the minimum requirements of 207 signatures, and also to confirm any other issues 
with the petition.  The Town Clerk has up to 20 days to respond.  Once a determination is made, 
it would have to come to the Town Council in one of two ways:  if there was a determination of 
insufficiency, the Town Council would make that final determination.  If it is determined to be 
sufficient, the Town Council has to make the decision to move it forward.  There are time limits 
– the Town Council must make its decision within 30 days of determination of sufficiency.  If 
the action is not to rescind the ordinance, the election would have to be 30-60 days after the 
Town Council acts.   
 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that there would be an inclination if this was possible, to put it on 
the regular election; however Florida Statutes §100.341 requires certain notices of referendum 
election notices.  The statute applies to this process.  We confirmed it with the Division of 
Elections.  Today would have been the deadline to meet the requirements of that statute.   
 

Page62 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 10 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Public Comment: 
 
John Ryan, 3508 A Road:  Commented regarding a Florida Statue that is involved with 
comprehensive plan amendments and future land use, and the consequences should such an 
ordinance be rescinded. 
  
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that the Florida Statute referred to is currently the subject of 
litigation.     
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that the process, as it is in the Town Charter, should go 
forward.  
 
Discussion took place regarding sovereign immunity, the Bert J. Harris Act, inverse 
condemnation, and eminent domain. 
 
In response to Councilman Jarriel, regarding the phrasing of the question that would appear on a 
ballot, Town Attorney Cirullo replied that is part of the process.  We have to determine he 
sufficiency of it.  The Charter requires certain things.  If the petition is deemed sufficient, the 
phrasing of that question would need to be accomplished by the Town through 
resolution/ordinance.  We need to determine the sufficiency of the petition. 
 
Grace Joyce, 3886 147th Ave., N.:   Commented regarding the process that was gone through 
with the college, and her distress with the fact that there were ample opportunities for public 
comment and for people to get involved; she questioned if the referendum petition was public 
record.  
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:   Indicated that she was one of the people that helped 
collect signatures. Commented regarding the Florida Statute referred to earlier.  
  
Todd McLendon, 3481 D Rd:  Commented that the Town Council needed to find out what the 
people want in regard to the college.  
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Rd.:  Commented regarding a scenario whereby the 75 acres could be 
taken out of the Town and revert to Palm Beach County. 
 
Councilman Liang commented that he found it disappointing for anyone to say that we are 
maneuvering – we have just asked what the steps are and what is going to happen.  No one on 
the Council has tried to impede the petition.  We have not done any legal maneuvers to stop the 
petition. 
 

Page63 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 11 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Mayor Browning commented that his frustration was the number of meetings that were held; that 
the best effort was made to put in something that was right for the community; congratulated the 
initiative committee on gathering the number of signatures.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Purchase and Installation of Solar Powered Flashing Red Lights to Add to Stop 
Signs – Requested by Council Member Rockett 

 
Vice Mayor Rockett provided a sample of the solar powered lights that had been put in the 
Indian Trail District, noting that they had found a company in California that could provide them 
with these lights.  He suggested that the Town Council purchase 50 of the lights and install them 
on the tops of stop lights; a $5,000 quote would cover approximately 50 lights.  
 
Motion: Vice Mayor Rockett made a motion to authorize the purchase of 50 solar 
powered lights.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Liang.  

 
Discussion took place regarding ownership of the roads and safety issues. 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Rd.:  Commented regarding light pollution, liability concerns, and 
responsibility for maintenance.  
 
Marsha Newell, 3508 C Rd.:  Commented regarding that she was against the lights. 
  
Dennis Lipp, 13402 North Rd.:  Commented regarding the Town’s signage responsibility, and 
that there were speed bumps in place so that people would not go too fast. 
  
Susan Clubb, 3319 E Rd.:  Commented that she would not like to see a bright light flashing in 
her face every time she drives down the roads, and that there is enough light pollution.  
 
Vice Mayor Rockett withdrew the motion. 
 

 
b. Manure Ordinance – Requested by Council Member Goltzené 

 

Page64 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 12 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Councilman Goltzené said that this has been brought up through several constituent issues. He 
stated that: The first one is very close to my heart, because my son works at one of the local 
horse veterinarians in town.  They have a pile of manure and my son asked if we could have one 
of these for our fields.  I checked and found out that it would make me a hauler or my son a 
hauler to bring that over to my house.  I would like to ask the Town Council what their thoughts 
are on local hauling within the town. A second issue is a gentleman representing the banana farm 
and he has a legitimate use for the manure, however, when we get to 20 loads, there is a fee, and 
the haulers want to pass that on to the farmers. 
 
Ramon Vilarino addressed the Town Council, stating that we are farmers. We pay a lot of 
property taxes, and we converted the old nurseries we had into banana farms, and that is what we 
need the manure for.  The Health Department has been out to our property, and they cannot find 
anything that contaminates the ground, and it decomposes and becomes fertilizer in the ground.  
We went to the Town offices, and there is an ordinance now that you have to have a $1200 
license and you can only haul 20 loads a year.  I understand trying to control that, but we are 
asking for someplace where we can meet. In the past we have had issues because we were 
stockpiling it, and the county came out and did their studies and said they would not allow us to 
stock pile it – we cannot keep it over 18 inches high.  It is more work for us, but it is something 
we need to do.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to amend the ordinance to allow hauling 
within Lox Groves by noncommercial growers, and to allow town management discretion 
at the time of permitting that if a bona fide ag demonstrates a need, they be allowed to do 
that.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that in the time it takes to get this done, zoning in progress 
would be in place on those two issues; that would give the Town the ability to look for folks who 
are consistent and still enforce folks who are not.  
 
Public Comment: 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Rd.:  Commented regarding the manure issue, and methods to 
have piles of manure that have no odor and no flies; and the financial burden on local farmers.  
   
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:  Commented that the levels of phosphorus are high in 
Wellington and part of that is because everyone just goes ahead and fertilizes every year.  The 
University of Florida has boxes available to do soil testing and you can send it in for $7 and they 
will test it for you. 
 

Page65 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 13 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Ann Parker, Collecting Canal Rd:  Stated that if I got manure to put on my garden from my 
neighbor, I would be breaking the law.  I hope when you do this amendment it will help us.   
 
The motion passed 5/0. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett noted that it has been left unsaid as to whether there would be a change in 
the number of loads. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that it was his hope was that we were going to waive the fee 
for people who are demonstrating a legitimate need.  When they come for their permit, the Town 
Manager can say for your situation and your hauler, that fee will be waived, but it is at his 
discretion when it is proven to him.  Anything beyond that original 20 can be waived with 
demonstrated need.   
 
In response to Town Attorney Cirullo, Mr. Vilarino said that he is not buying or paying for the 
loads that are delivered to him. 
  
Town Manager Kutney commented that, from a general standpoint last year when we did the 
amendments regarding manure coming into Town from other locations, the Town Council had a 
lot of discussion at that time.  It was now a good time for staff to review it and see if it is 
achieving what we want it to.       
 
 
 

c. Town Council Interest in Purchasing Property 
 
Town Manager Kutney addressed letter from Lee Wright who has offered property for sale, if the 
town is interested in terms of the same.  Information was provided in the Agenda Packet 
regarding market value and sale prices related to several other properties.  Mr. Kutney advised 
that he had no discussions as to what Mr. Wright would want for his property.  If the Town was 
interested, staff would request appraisals, etc.  Tonight he was asking for any direction to Town 
staff to move forward or to do nothing at this time.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the location of the property, the potential uses for the property, 
the market value, and the recent clearing of the land. 
 
Councilman Goltzené commented that he had done the clearing and had done nothing wrong; he 
had cleared land for numerous people, and knew what he was doing; a permit was not needed to 
clear exotics and he had spoken with Town Manager Kutney and Town Planning Technical 
Garrett about it. 

Page66 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 14 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that Councilman Goltzené had recused himself at the last meeting 
where discussion of this same matter took place, and would recuse himself again tonight, should 
any action be taken. [Clerk’s note:  Voting Conflict Form 8b is attached to these minutes] 
 
Dennis Lipp, 13402 North Rd.:  Commented regarding government use of land, and 
recommended thinking in terms of having a building that would house both the LGWCD and the 
Town. 
  
Lung Chiu, 3270 B Rd.:  Commented proper procedures need to be followed if here was a desire 
for a town center, and it must be determined what was wanted.  
 
Town Manager Kutney remarked that if someone brings him a request like this one, the Town 
Council members are the decision makers and he only provided the information. 
 
 
 

d.  Small Business Owner Billy Kline –(added to agenda by Mayor Browning) 
 
Mayor Browning advised that there was a resident, Billy Kline, who had a business in tow for a 
long time.  He has an in home gun store where he sells 8-10 guns per year, and in reviewing his 
license they have said that it is not an allowed use in Loxahatchee Groves.   
 
Town Manager Kutney stated that technically, it was not a question of Mr. Kline not being in 
compliance.  In January 2012 he came in for a Business Tax Receipt and it was approved based 
on a conditional use for a residential enterprise, and there were eleven conditions.  One of them 
was that no client or customer shall be allowed on the premises to transact business of any 
nature.   The ATF looks to make sure that the gun dealer is in conformance with local 
government requirements.  In this case, when we advised them of the residential enterprise 
situation, they said that he was not in compliance with the one condition of customers not 
coming to the home.  The solution would be to try to find a way to address that one condition in 
the overall use of residential enterprise.  Otherwise, according to the ATF he has to sell guns at a 
gun shop, gun show, or something along those lines.   
 
Motion: Councilman Goltzené made a motion that the Town allow residential 
enterprises to have up to three clients present at any time during business hours.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Rockett. 
 
Town Manager Kutney referred to Section 80-020 – Residential Enterprise, wherein it was stated 
that exceptions to the foregoing limitations shall be subject to approval by the Town Council, 

Page67 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 15 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

and such request shall be considered in conjunction with the criteria set forth in Section 170-
025(A) for Special Exception. That would seem to give the Town Council the ability to grant an 
exception to that particular violation by virtue of a special exception.  That is what I would 
recommend rather than changing the entire code.  He noted that the Town Council would also 
have to consider cost recovery, and whether it would be waived.  
 
Motion: Councilman Goltzené amended his original motion to waive cost recovery, 
and to amend it to direct that after this change is made we turn it over to the ULDC review 
committee to review the special exception section of the ULDC. 
 
Town Attorney Cirullo advised that there was a statute in place that preempts regulation of 
firearms.  We can regulate them from the context of zoning as long as it is not singling out 
firearms.  If it is regulated as a general business use, like the residential enterprise, we are 
allowed to do that under the code.  We must be careful, if we are going to be looking at a special 
exception for this use, that if we single out the remedy for this we do not want to be seen as 
evading the state statute.  The first motion is a better motion to deal with this issue.  The better 
way is to make a general change regardless of what product is being sold.  It is a general zoning 
regulation.  It could not be seen in any way as trying to regulate firearms. 
 
Town Manager Kutney Mark cautioned that if a complaint was received from someone it would 
be very hard to enforce that from a code enforcement standpoint. 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Howard Voren, 1538 E Rd.:  Commented with a suggestion for a daily visitation limit, and not at 
a time. 
  
The motion, as amended, passed 5/0. 
 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Martin McCabe, D Rd.:  Commented that the last time he spoke, it was said he did not have a 
Business Tax Receipt (BTR), and he now had brought a copy with him.   He also brought the 
Town confirmation response.  He handed out copies for the Town Council.   
 

Page68 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 16 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Town Manager Kutney advised that Mr. McCabe had received a BTR – staff had found out that 
he was not the owner of the property, nor did he have the property owner’s consent.  Staff tried 
to help him out; however, he needed 10 acres for that use.  Technically he is in violation, and it is 
proceeding to the Special Magistrate.  The County said that it was issued in error. 
 
Councilman Jarriel requested that Mr. McCabe’s issue is added to the next Town Council 
agenda.  
 
Town Attorney Cirullo noted that there has been a code case initiated. 
 
Town Manager Kutney advised that staff would stay the code enforcement action until the next 
Town Council meeting, and that he found it imprudent to allow him to continue the inappropriate 
activity to mulch up the remainder of the material. 
 
Marsha Newell, 3508 C Rd.:  Commented regarding that if the residential enterprise section of 
the ULDC was amended to allow only three people a day or at a time showing up, what is the 
difference between that and nurseries that people come to all day long.  It is not fair to penalize 
people on the size of our properties to limit the amount of people. 
 
Thias Gonzalez, 13090 Raymond Dr.:  Commented on behalf of Marge Herzog to announce 
Loxahatchee Groves Homeowners Association candidate forum on the 4th Thursday of February 
at 7:00 p.m. and commented regarding agricultural business in Loxahatchee Groves. 
 
Howard Voren:  Commented regarding cost recovery, the discussion last meeting regarding 
Councilman Jarriel, and that it was not mentioned that what he had done came from the heart, 
and to save the Town money; the role of the LGWCD regarding roadways, and the common 
ground between Councilmen Jarriel and Goltzené.  
 

b. Town Attorney 
 

Town Attorney Cirullo reported that he had received the Attorney General Opinion that 
confirmed that the exemption 604.50 applied to non-residential farms buildings. 
 
He reported regarding the status of the Day lawsuit.  Mr. Day has agreed to dismiss the federal 
claims, but it is going to go back to the State on the claims whether the system was arbitrary in 
denying the application. The case has been dismissed in Federal Court and it will be back in 
State Court.  We are still being defended by insurance counsel at this point. 

 
c. Town Council Members 

 

Page69 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
      TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2013 

 
 
 

 
Town Council Meeting Minutes  Page 17 of 17 
02/05/2013 
 

Councilman Goltzené:  Commented that he apologized to Councilman Jarriel for becoming 
upset, and that there is no reason to fight, and that he and Councilman Jarriel should try to work 
together. 
  
Councilman Jarriel:  Commented that he agreed, and that he also apologized, and that they 
were working together to support the Town.   
 
Councilman Liang:  Wished good luck to Jim Rockett and Dave Browning. 
 
Vice Mayor Rockett:  Commented regarding a candidate forum. 
  
Mayor Browning:  Thanked everyone.  Mentioned the fire on C Rd, and asked that everyone 
keep aware. 
 
Councilman Jarriel:  Requested that Town Manager Kutney find out when the county tagged 
the fire hydrants unserviceable and when they will be fixed. 
 
 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, the Town Council meeting of February 5, 2013, was adjourned 
at 11:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________   ____________________________ 
Susan Eichhorn    David Browning 
Town Clerk     Mayor 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 

These minutes were approved by the Town Council at the 
March 5, 2013, Town Council Meeting 

 
 
 

 

Page70 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page71 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page72 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

3.a.  South Florida Water Management Presentation 

Page73 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

4.a.  FAAC Report 

Page74 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 Transportation Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 249,245        59,266           23.8%
SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,326        27,392           23.3%
CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                   -                     

TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE -                   -                     
Total Revenues 366,571       86,658           23.6%
TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS (6 CT) MAINT. 9,245            5,355              57.9%
NON-DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. 40,000          10,480            26.2%
DISTRICT ROADS (6 CT) MAINT. -                   -                 
ROADS AND STREETS (5 CT) 150,000        -                 

SPECIAL PROJECTS (6 CT) 50,000          -                 
148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                   -                 
CONSTRUCTION TOWN RDS & STREETS -                   -                 

TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE 117,326 -                 
Total Expenses 366,571       15,835           4.3%
Excess(deficiency) -                   70,823           
Solid Waste Fund Budget Year-to-Date %

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS 346,361        224,162          64.7%
DISCOUNT FEES (10,392)         (8,809)             84.8%

Revenues Budget Year-to-Date % SWA RECYCLING INCOME 8,000            3,652              45.7%
AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 206,025         136,102         66.1% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 126,000        -                 
ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          202,000         72,622           36.0% Total Revenues 469,969        219,006          46.6%
COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    136,726         32,072           23.5%
COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000             3,252             65.0% CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT          12,000          2,718              22.7%
FPL FRANCHISE FEE 206,000         50,937           24.7% PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 3,463            2,117.93         61.2%
HAULER LICENSE FEE 2,000             1,000             50.0% POSTAGE & FREIGHT 500 -                 
PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE 10,500           2,134             20.3% SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 451,634        150,545          33.3%
PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT FEES 30,000           76                 0.3% OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 1,500            -                     0.0%
STATE REVENUE SHARING 77,873           19,151           24.6%  LEGAL ADVERTISING             872               -                     0.0%
HALF CENT SALES TAX 212,024         51,334           24.2% MANAGEMENT FEES -                   -                     
GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES 5,000             3,005             60.1% Total Expenses 469,969        155,381          33.1%
COST RECOVERY FEES 20,000           14,051           70.3% Excess(deficiency) 63,625            
COURT FINES -                    1,177             Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Fund Budget Year-to-Date %
CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 5,000             300               6% CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND 400,000       -                     
INTEREST 3,600             103               2.9% TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 912,466       -                     

OTHER MISC. INCOME 5,000             -                    0 Total Revenues 1,312,466   -                     0.0%
TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE* 400,000         -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 1,526,748     387,317         25.4% DEVELOP TOWN HALL ALTERNATIVES 500,000       -                     -                 
TRAILS 200,000       -                     -                 

Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % OGEM PAVING/COST SHARING -                   -                     
LEGISLATIVE       39,235           6,187             15.8% ROAD & DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENT 362,466       -                     -                 
EXECUTIVE 275,259         89,704           32.6% TRAFFIC LIGHT OKEECHOBEE 250,000       -                     -                 
FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE 23,750           910               3.8% -                 
LEGAL COUNSEL 60,000           29,601           49.3% Total Expenses 1,312,466     -                     0.0%
COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING & ZONING 148,700         56,757           38.2% Excess(deficiency) -                     
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 695,519         32,178           4.6% Contract Services Expenditures
LAW ENFORCEMENT 275,285         91,595           33.3% Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date %
PUBLIC WORKS 9,000             783               8.7% Waste Pro 451,634        150,544.80      33.3%

Total Expenditures 1,526,748      307,716         20.2% Palm Beach County Sheriff 275,285        91,595.00       33.3%

Excess(deficiency) -                        79,601           Underwood Management Services Group 330,835        109,794.65      33.2%
Goren, Cherof, Doody, Ezrol 60,000          31,533.00       52.6%
Tew & Associates 35,000          9,948.10         28.4%

YTD-Total Funds Expen. Budget Land Research Management 10,585.50       
Expenditures Budget Year-to-Date % Calvin Giodorno 507.50            
Total Townwide Budget 3,675,754      478,932         13.0% Frank Schiola 25,000          5,957.96         23.8%

YEE's Corporation 10,800          3,600.00         33.3%
Loxahatchee Water Control District 150000 7,420.78         

Total Expenses 1,338,554       421,487.29      

General Fund Revenue Budget Selected Other Funds

General Fund Revenues

General Fund Expenditures

(33% of year elapsed)

Town of Loxahatchee Groves
Financial Activity Report as of January 30 , 2013

AD VALOREM 
TAXESFPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX

STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX

PBC\OCC BUS TAX
GEN GOVT 
CHARGES

COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC 
FINES

PLAN ZON PERMIT 
FEES

INTEREST

OTH MISC 
INCOME

TRANS FR SANI 
FUND

 -  200,000  400,000  600,000  800,000  1,000,000

AD VALOREM TAXES
FPL FRAN FEE

WATER FRAN FEE
ELEC UTIL TAX

COMM SVCS TAX
STATE REV SHARE

1/2 SALES TAX
PBC\OCC BUS TAX

GEN GOVT CHARGES
COST RECOV FEES

CODE ENFORC FINES
PLAN ZON PERMIT…

INTEREST
OTH MISC INCOME

TRANS FR SANI FUND
TRANS FR FUND BAL

General Fund Revenue

Budget YTD

2012-01 FinActRep Page75 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 18,373.12            136,101.81       -                      206,025.00            (69,923.19)               66.1%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 18,373.12          136,101.81     206,025.00          (69,923.19)             

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 14,571.59            72,622.17         -                      202,000.00            (129,377.83)              36.0%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 10,363.50            32,071.84         -                      136,726.00            (104,654.16)              23.5%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 90.03                   3,252.11           -                      5,000.00                (1,747.89)                 65.0%

Local Taxes Subtotal 25,025.12          107,946.12     -                     343,726.00          (235,779.88)            

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee 14,408.62            50,937.03         -                      206,000.00            (155,062.97)              24.7%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee 1,000.00              1,000.00           -                      2,000.00                (1,000.00)                 50.0%
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 392.36                 2,134.40           -                      10,500.00              (8,365.60)                 20.3%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit -                       76.00               -                      30,000.00              (29,924.00)               0.3%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 15,800.98          54,147.43       -                     248,500.00          (194,352.57)            

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,383.53              19,150.76         -                      77,873.00              (58,722.24)               24.6%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 18,288.50            51,334.40         -                      212,024.00            (160,689.60)              24.2%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 24,672.03          70,485.16       289,897.00          (219,411.84)            24.3%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 615.10                 3,005.10           -                      5,000.00                (1,994.90)                 60.1%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 2,474.25              14,050.90         -                      20,000.00              (5,949.10)                 70.3%

Charges for Services Subtotal 3,089.35            17,056.00       -                     25,000.00            (7,944.00)               

001-351-100-000 Court Fines 613.84               1,177.33         -                     -                       1,177.33                 
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines -                       300.00             -                      5,000.00                (4,700.00)                 6.0%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal 613.84               1,477.33         -                     5,000.00              (3,522.67)               

001-361-100-000 Interest 66.26                   103.33             -                      3,600.00                (3,496.67)                 #N/A
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                (5,000.00)                 0.0%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 66.26                 103.33           -                     8,600.00              (8,496.67)               

001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
Other Non-operating Sources Subotal -                     -                 400,000.00          (400,000.00)            

Grand Total Revenue 87,640.70          387,317.18     -                     1,526,748.00       (1,139,430.82)         25.4%

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF JANUARY 31, 2013

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 1 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page76 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                   -                      20,000.00              20,000.00                 0.0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       92.00               -                      3,000.00                2,908.00                   3.1%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       1,084.00           -                      1,500.00                416.00                      72.3%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       -                   -                      1,000.00                1,000.00                   0.0%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies 11.20                   11.20               -                      300.00                   288.80                      3.7%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                   -                      300.00                   300.00                      0.0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       3,714.00           -                      7,785.00                4,071.00                   47.7%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions 145.24                 1,286.18           -                      5,350.00                4,063.82                   24.0%

Legislative Total 156.44               6,187.38         -                     39,235.00            33,047.62               15.8%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 20,885.20            84,506.04         -                      254,635.00            170,128.96               33.2%
001-512-400-000 Travel 253.66                 471.17             -                      1,000.00                528.83                      47.1%
001-512-410-000 Communication Services 330.97                 807.23             -                      -                         (807.23)                    -
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 131.85                 191.05             -                      1,000.00                808.95                      19.1%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       209.84             -                      500.00                   290.16                      42.0%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 30.19                   90.19               -                      944.00                   853.81                      9.6%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense 290.88                 290.88             -                      8,010.00                7,719.12                   3.6%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 557.49                 1,987.99           -                      8,600.00                6,612.01                   23.1%
001-512-521-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT - MOVED -                       1,149.67           -                      -                         (1,149.67)                 -
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       -                   -                      570.00                   570.00                      0.0%

Executive Total 22,480.24          89,704.06       275,259.00          185,554.94             32.6%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       -                   -                      18,000.00              18,000.00                 0.0%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                   -                      4,750.00                4,750.00                   0.0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       910.00             -                      1,000.00                90.00                        91.0%
001-513-493-000 Election Expense (moved) -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     910.00           23,750.00            22,840.00               3.8%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 3,516.00              29,600.60         -                      60,000.00              30,399.40                 49.3%
Legal Total 3,516.00            29,600.60       60,000.00            30,399.40               32.6%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 2 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page77 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 6,250.00              31,311.36         -                      40,000.00              8,688.64                   78.3%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 5,748.75              8,063.75           -                      76,200.00              68,136.25                 10.6%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-515-347-000 Comprehensive Plan -                       -                   -                      5,000.00                5,000.00                   0.0%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 2,501.25              14,077.90         -                      25,000.00              10,922.10                 56.3%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 2,322.00              3,304.08           -                      2,500.00                (804.08)                    132.2%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 16,822.00          56,757.09       148,700.00          91,942.91               38.2%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 495.00                 2,250.00           -                      16,000.00              13,750.00                 14.1%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,487.00              8,040.50           -                      41,000.00              32,959.50                 19.6%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 125.00                 1,046.03           -                      5,100.00                4,053.97                   20.5%
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 1,523.04              5,614.17           -                      16,305.00              10,690.83                 34.4%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       12,316.00         -                      16,500.00              4,184.00                   74.6%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 200.00                 800.00             -                      2,126.00                1,326.00                   37.6%
001-519-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       887.85             -                      -                         (887.85)                    0.0%
001-519-480-000 Promotional Activities -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair 170.60                 1,047.15           -                      4,500.00                3,452.85                   23.3%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 176.75                 176.75             -                      11,131.00              10,954.25                 1.6%
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                   -                      5,280.00                5,280.00                   0.0%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT -                       -                   -                      2,000.00                2,000.00                   0.0%
001-519-900-000 Transfer toTransportation Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-519-910-000 Transfer to Sanitation Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            126,000.00               0.0%
001-519-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            400,000.00               0.0%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                   -                      49,577.00              49,577.00                 0.0%

Other Governmental Services Total 5,177.39            32,178.45       695,519.00          663,340.55             4.6%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 22,898.75            91,595.00         -                      274,785.00            183,190.00               33.3%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%

Law Enforcement Total 22,898.75          91,595.00       275,285.00          183,690.00             33.3%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
001-539-340-000 Professional Services 426.00                 783.46             -                      9,000.00                8,216.54                   8.7%

Public Works Total 426.00               783.46           9,000.00              8,216.54                 8.7%

Grand Total Expenditure 71,476.82          307,716.04     -                     1,526,748.00       1,219,031.96          20.2%

Net Revenue 16,163.88          79,601.14       -                       

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2013

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 3 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page78 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax 19,612.47            59,266.11         -                      249,245.00            (189,978.89)              23.8%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax 8,779.11              27,391.84         -                      117,326.00            (89,934.16)               23.4%
101-363-990-000 Contribution from General Fund -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Revenue 28,391.58          86,657.95       366,571.00          23.6%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. 5,355.00              5,355.00           -                      9,245.00                3,890.00                   57.9%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. 287.26                 10,479.94         -                      40,000.00              29,520.06                 26.2%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-631-000 Road and Streets (5 cent) -                       -                   -                      150,000.00            150,000.00               0.0%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                   -                      50,000.00              50,000.00                 0.0%
101-541-634-000 148th Terr Bridge (5)/Culvert -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-636-000 Construct Town Rds & Sts -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
101-541-990-000 Transfer to Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      117,326.00            117,326.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure 5,642.26            15,834.94       -                     366,571.00          4.3%

Net Revenue 22,749.32          70,823.01       -                       -                         

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2013

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 4 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page79 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      400,000.00            (400,000.00)              0.0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                   -                      912,466.00            (912,466.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       (1,312,466.00)         0.0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-519-600-000 Develop Town Hall Alternatives -                       -                   -                      500,000.00            500,000.00               0.0%
305-541-341-000 Trails (changed from Linear Park/Grant Match) -                       -                   -                      200,000.00            200,000.00               0.0%
305-541-346-000 OGEM Paving/Cost Sharing -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
305-541-434-000 Road & Drainage Improvement -                       -                   -                      362,466.00            362,466.00               0.0%
305-541-436-000 Traffic Light Okeechobee -                       -                   -                      250,000.00            250,000.00               0.0%

Total Expenditure -                     -                 -                     1,312,466.00       1,312,466.00          0.0%

Net Revenue -                     -                 -                       -                         

Capital Improvement Program

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2013

Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 5 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page80 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



33% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-323-125-000 Haulers Licensing Fee - MOVED TO GF -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%
405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 30,142.73            224,162.39       -                      346,361.00            (122,198.61)              64.7%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees (938.30)                (8,808.79)         -                      (10,392.00)             1,583.21                   84.8%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income -                       3,652.09           -                      8,000.00                (4,347.91)                 45.7%
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                   -                      126,000.00            (126,000.00)              0.0%

Total Revenue 29,204.43          219,005.69     -                     469,969.00          (250,963.31)            46.6%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over 689.00                 2,718.00           -                      12,000.00              9,282.00                   22.7%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 256.44                 2,117.93           -                      3,463.00                1,345.07                   61.2%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                   -                      500.00                   500.00                      0.0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 37,636.20            150,544.80       -                      451,634.00            301,089.20               33.3%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       -                   -                      1,500.00                1,500.00                   0.0%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                   -                      872.00                   872.00                      0.0%
405-534-595-000 TOLG Management Fee -                       -                   -                      -                         -                           0.0%

Total Expenditure 38,581.64          155,380.73     -                     469,969.00          314,588.27             33.1%

Net Revenue (9,377.21)           63,624.96       -                       

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

AS OF JANUARY 31, 2013

UMSG,LLC
Page 6 of 6

Created: 2/20/2013
Page81 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

5.a.  Ordinance No. 2012-12 

Page82 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 
 

840 N.E. Stokes Terrace                                                                                                               William F. Underwood, II 
Jensen Beach, Florida 34957                                                                                                                                           Managing Partner 
Telephone: 772.233.1511                                                                                                                                           Email: umsg@att.net                    

 

 

TO:  Town Council 

FROM: Underwood Management Services Group, L.L.C. 

RE: Town Initiated Amendment to the Loxahatchee Groves Unified Land Development 
Code (ULDC) to Addition of Section 80-60 – Residential Agricultural Sales and 
Services 

DATE:  February 27, 2013. 

CC:  William F. Underwood, Managing Partner 

_________________ ____________________________________________ 

I.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Per Section 05-070, the Town Council may amend the ULDC for the purposes of public necessity, 
convenience, general welfare, or good planning and zoning practice.  Any amendment to the ULDC 
requires a super majority vote of four or more Council members. 

A Code Enforcement  complaint was filed against several entities that alleged the improper retail sales of 
hay without appropriate approvals.   The complaint was investigated by the Town’s code enforcement 
staff and it was determined that the three entities were operating in the Agricultural Residential (AR) 
zoning district without the proper authority and approval.   

One of the respondents, Gerald and Janet Eick were cited with a Notice of Violation for the illegal 
business activity and directed to correct the violation by June 4, 2012 or be scheduled for a hearing 
before the Special Magistrate.  The respondents engaged an attorney and also met with several 
members of Town  Council.   

At the June 5, 2012 Town Council Meeting, the respondents appeared and requested consideration for 
their current operations.  Town Council deliberated on the matter and directed Town Management Staff 
and the Town Attorney to review the matter and propose possible remedies that would address the 
issue. 

At the June 20, 2012 meeting, Town Management Staff presented a strategy including the following 
elements:  Limiting the operation to property residents; restricting the operation to resident owners rather 
than vesting with the land; requiring a business tax receipt; and other requirements consistent with the 
intent of the Unified Land Development Code. 

II. GENERAL INFORMATION 

A.  APPLICANT:  Town of Loxahatchee Groves.   

 

Page83 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

Page | 2 

Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 

B. PURPOSE:  Incorporate revisions to the Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) allowing 
limited agricultural sales and services uses within the Town’s Agricultural Residential (AR) 
zoning district.  Specific objectives include the following: 

 
1. Allow existing family-run businesses to remain indefinitely, provided a change in 

ownership does not occur. 
 
2. Create “sunset” provision for businesses tied to maintenance of a homestead 

exemption and business tax receipt. 
 

3. Allow new businesses to be created subject to conditions. 
 

4. Straw, hay, flake shavings, pellet shavings, feed and grain sales businesses only. 
 

III. REQUESTED ULDC AMENDMENTS 

To implement the objectives of the ULDC revisions, the following amendments are proposed:  

1. Revise ULDC Section 10-015 to include a definition of “Residential Agricultural Sales 
and Services”. 

 
2. Revise ULDC Section 20-015 to permit Residential Agricultural Sales and Services 

uses as an Accessory Use in the AR zoning district subject to Article 80 (Conditional 
Uses). 

 
3. Add ULDC Section 80-60: Residential Agricultural Sales and Services (Conditional 

Use Criteria) 
 
Proposed amendments are included as Attachment A to proposed Ordinance 2012-12 

IV. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The proposed text amendment is reviewed in accordance with the following criteria, as listed in Section 
160-020 of the ULDC.  

A. REASON AND/OR  NEED FOR THE PROPOSED TEXT CHANGE:   
 

The basic purpose of the proposed amendments is to implement Town Council direction to allow limited 
agricultural sales and services businesses in the AR zoning district.  

B. REASON THE PRESENT TEXT IS INVALID OR INAPPROPRIATE: 

The current text of the ULDC is not necessarily invalid or inappropriate; however, current Code language 
does not permit limited agricultural sales and services businesses in the Agricultural Residential (AR) 
zoning district. 

 

Page84 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

Page | 3 

Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 

C. HOW DOES THE PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT FURTHER THE PURPOSES OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OR OTHER TOWN CODES, REGULATIONS OR PLANS 
DESIGNED TO IMPLEMENT THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  

The proposed ULDC revisions, which allow and regulate limited agricultural sales and services 
businesses in the AR zoning district, are consistent with the following general Future Land Use Element 
Comprehensive Plan directives:  

1. Objective 1.1: The Town shall designate future land uses with appropriate uses, densities 
and intensities that will protect residential and agricultural land uses and encourage 
limited economic development.  

 
2. Policy 1.1.4(h): Create codes allowing diverse low impact home-based businesses. 

 
3. Policy 1.1.6: The Town shall encourage the use of innovative land development 

regulations that enhance the rural atmosphere, reduce energy usage, and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
4. Policy 1.1.8.2:  Provide for zoning districts, which appropriately accommodate residential 

and/or agricultural uses, which are consistent with the Rural Residential Future Land Use 
designation. 

 
5.  Policy 1.1.8.6: Allow home occupation uses that will not degrade the rural character of the 

area.   
 

6. Policy 1.12.4: The Town will continue to allow home based businesses to the extent that 
impacts are compatible with an agricultural/residential community. 

 

D. IS THERE AN ERROR OR AMBIGUITY TO BE CORECTED: There are no identified errors or 
ambiguities identified in the Town’s current ULDC regarding the issue.  Rather, the proposed 
amendments provide an opportunity to allow limited agricultural sales and services businesses in a 
manner consistent with the Town’s rural character. 

V. STAFF FINDINGS:  Planning staff finds the proposed ULDC revisions to be generally consistent with 
the intent and direction of the Loxahatchee Groves Comprehensive Plan and the review criteria for a text 
amendment listed in Section 160-020 of the ULDC. 
 
VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the proposed ULDC revisions, as 
presented in proposed Ordinance 2012-12 or alternately that Council follow the recommendation of the 
ULDC Committee, as presented below, and further discussed verbally at the Public Hearing by the Town 
Manager. 

VII. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD ACTION:   The Planning and Zoning Board, at its meeting of 
November 8, 2012 voted, by a 3 – 0 vote (2 members absent) to recommend approval of the proposed 
ULDC revisions. 

VII. TOWN COUNCIL ACTION:   The item appeared on the Town Council agenda of December 4, 2012.  
At the meeting Councilman Goltzene moved to continue the item for further review.  Following the 
meeting staff met with Councilman Goltzene to discuss his concerns.  Staff’s response to Councilman 

Page85 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

Page | 4 

Underwood Management Services Group, LLC 

 

Goltzene’s concerns are incorporated within the proposed ULDC revisions presented in Attachment A of 
Resolution 2012-02. 

Principal revisions to the initial staff proposal generated by Councilman Goltzene’s recommendations 
included: 

1. Delete the provision that the business owner also be the homesteaded owner of the property 
(i.e. renters can also be the business owner). 

 
2. Delete the provision that a change in ownership of the property invalidates the right to 

continue the business (i.e. the right to operate the business runs with the land regardless of 
any future changes in ownership). 

 
3. Delete the “sunset” provision for businesses tied to maintenance of a  

homestead exemption. 

The Town Council, at its meeting of January 15, 2013 voted, by a 3 – 2 margin to approve Ordinance 
2012-12 on first reading subject to the following revisions: 

1. Strike provisions regarding special exception approval for semi-trucks making deliveries. 
 
2. Strike provisions limiting the number of employees to two. 

 
3. Revise the hours of operation to read as follows:  8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. five days per week, 

and on Saturday.  Sunday hours 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 
The Town Council, at its meeting of February 5, 2013 voted to refer proposed Ordinance 2012-12 to the 
ULDC Committee for its review and comments prior to second reading. 
 
IX. ULDC COMMITTEE ACTION 

The ULDC Committee, by unanimous vote, recommended that the Council table second reading of 
proposed Ordinance 2012-12 until such time that staff and the Committee has time to propose a 
substitute ordinance including all “Historical Legacy” businesses.  The Town Manager will provide a 
verbal presentation on this matter. 

Alternatively, if the Council decides to proceed with second reading of Ordinance 2012-12, the ULDC 
Committee recommended that the term “Residential Agricultural Sales and Services” be revised to read 
“Residential Agricultural Support Sales and Services”. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page86 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page87 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page88 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page89 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page90 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page91 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page92 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page93 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page94 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page95 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page96 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-12 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (ULDC), TO AMEND 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS,” SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED 
“DEFINITIONS” TO ADD A NEW DEFINITION FOR “RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES;” TO AMEND ARTICLE 20, 
ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS,” SECTION 20-015, 
ENTITLED “PERMITTED USES,” TO ADD RESIDENTIAL 
AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES AS AN ACCESSORY USE 
SUBJECT TO ARTICLE 80 (CONDITIONAL USE)  IN THE 
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; TO 
AMEND ARTICLE 80, ENTITLED “CONDITIONAL USES,” TO ADD A 
NEW SECTION 80-60, ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL 
SALES AND SERVICES,” TO PROVIDE CONDITIONS ON 
RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES USES IN THE 
AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) ZONING DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND, PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, At the June 5, 2012 Town Council Meeting, the Town Council directed 

Town Management Staff and the Town Attorney to review the issue of retail hay sales and 

propose possible remedies that would address the issue; and 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning Staff has reviewed the issue and proposed amendments 

to the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) to regulate such activities as set forth 

herein; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board considered the proposed amendments 

to the Town’s ULDC at its November 8, 2012, meeting and pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, 

Florida Statutes, recommended that the Town Council approve the ordinance to amend the 

ULDC as set forth herein; and,  

Page97 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-12    Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds that the adoption 

of this ordinance is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and in the best health and 

welfare interests of the Town, its property owners and residents.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 
  

Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance.   

Section 2:  That the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, hereby amends 

the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to: 

a.  Amend Article 10 entitled “Definitions, Abbreviations, And Construction Of 

Terms,” Section 10-015, entitled “Definitions” to add a new definition for 

“Residential Agricultural Sales And Services;”  

b. Amend Article 20, entitled “Residential Zoning Districts,” Section 20-015, entitled 

“Permitted Uses,” to add Residential Agricultural Sales and Services as an Accessory 

Use subject to Article 80 (Conditional Use) in the Agricultural Residential (AR) 

Zoning District;  

c. Amend Article 80, entitled “Conditional Uses,” to add a new Section 80-60, entitled 

“Residential Agricultural Sales And Services,” to provide conditions on Residential 

Agricultural Sales And Services Uses in the Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning 

District. 

Page98 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-12    Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Section 3:  Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.   

Section 4:  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

Section 5:  Codification.  The Town Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be codified as a 

part of the ULDC. 

Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 4th DAY OF  
DECEMBER, 2012. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
5th  DAY OF MARCH, 2013.         
            
       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
       FLORIDA 
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice Mayor Jim Rockett   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 

Page99 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Attachment A to Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A  

RESIDENTIAL AGRICULTURAL SALES AND SERVICES 
ULDC AMENDMENTS 
 (Ref: Following Page) 

 
 
 
Underlined text indicates additions to the current ULDC.  Strikethrough text indicates 
revisions made by the Council at first reading of the ordinance on January 15, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page100 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Attachment A to Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

 
1.  ADD TO Section 10-015:  Definitions 
 
Residential Agricultural Sales and Services:  Places of business as an accessory use to the 
principal use of single-family engaged in the sale from the premises solely of straw, hay, flake 
shavings, pellet shavings, feed and grain for livestock and domesticated animals. 
 
2.  ADD TO Section 20-015: Permitted Uses (AR District)  
 
Plots located in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning districts may be used for the following 
specified uses. 
 

Accessory Uses* Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Accessory Dwelling Permitted  
Groom’s Quarter Permitted 
Caretaker’s Quarter Permitted 
Home Offices Permitted subject to Article 80 
Residential Enterprise Permitted subject to Article 80 
Wholesale Nursery Permitted 
Retail Nursery Permitted w/Special Exception 
U-Pick Farms Permitted w/Special Exception 
Private Kennels Permitted  
Private Stables Permitted  
Yard Sales Permitted subject to Article 80 
Residential Agricultural Sales and Services Permitted subject to Article 80 
 

*Accessory Use. Uses naturally and customarily incidental, subordinate, and subservient to the principal use 

of the premises, and located on the same plot as the principal use. The area of an accessory use shall be 

subordinate to that of the principal use.  

3.  ADD TO Article 80: Conditional Uses  
 
Section 80-60:  Residential Agricultural Sales and Services. 
 
Residential agricultural sales and services uses, as defined in Article 10, “Definitions, 
Abbreviations and Construction of Terms”, may occur as an accessory use to the principal use 
of single-family dwelling in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning district subject to the 
following conditions and limitations:  
 

(A) Owner of property and business.  The plot on which a residential agricultural sales 
and services use is located shall be occupied by the owner of said plot who shall 
also own and operate said residential agricultural sales and services use.  The 
owner of the plot shall provide to the Town proof of a homestead exemption as soon 
as possible, but no later than one year following the establishment of the residential 
agricultural sales and services use.  

 

Page101 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Attachment A to Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

(B) Change of ownership.  Any future change of ownership of the plot upon which a 
residential agricultural sales and services use is located or the  residential 
agricultural sales and services use shall invalidate an approval to operate under this 
Section.  

 
(C) Annual business tax receipt required.  Subject to review and written zoning  

confirmation by the Town, the owner of a residential agricultural sales and services 
use shall procure a Palm Beach County business tax receipt annually and provide a 
copy to the Town.  The Town shall use said receipts to establish and maintain a 
registry of residential agricultural sales and services businesses.   

 
(D)  Size of property.   Residential agricultural sales and services uses shall be located  

 on plots of five acres or more in size and comply with all lot frontage and setback     
 requirements per Sections 20-25(B) and  20-035(A) to (D).  

 
(E) Location of residential agricultural sales and services use.  A residential agricultural 

sales and services use shall be conducted as an accessory use solely on the 
property where the main single-family dwelling is located.  

 
(F) Activities requiring special exception approval.  The following residential agricultural 

sales and services activities shall require a Special Exception pursuant to Article 
170.  

 
(1)The use of truck tractor(s) and semi-trailer(s) for residential agricultural sales 
and services product delivery to the plot. 
 
(1) The use of semi-trailers visible from the street or an adjoining residence  for  
residential agricultural sales and services products storage. 

 
(G) Number of accessory buildings.  There shall be a maximum of two accessory 

buildings used for a residential agricultural sales and services use. All accessory 
storage buildings for residential agricultural sales and service uses shall be enclosed 
or completely screened from view from adjacent properties. 

 
(H) Size of accessory buildings. The total floor area ratio (F.A.R.) of all accessory 

buildings used for a residential agricultural sales and services use shall not exceed 
0.01.  

 
(I) Use of shipping containers and semi-trailers.  Shipping containers and semi-trailers 

may be used to store residential agricultural sales and services products prior to their 
sale.   

Page102 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Attachment A to Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

 
(1) For the purposes of this section, shipping containers shall be considered 

accessory buildings. 
 
(2) A maximum of two semi-trailers may be used for outdoor storage of 

residential agricultural sales and services products on a plot of land without 
screening, subject to Section 80 – 60  (F), provided that such vehicles are 
routinely operated and maintained.   

 
(3) Shipping containers and semi-trailers shall not be located in any required 

setbacks, easements, or rights-of-way. 
 

(J) Employees or contractors.  In addition to any person(s) who are the resident owners 
of the property and the residential agricultural sales and services use, a maximum of 
two additional employees or contractors shall be permitted at any given time to assist 
with the residential agricultural sales and services use.  

 
(J) Outdoor storage.  Outdoor storage associated with residential agricultural sales and   

services uses  shall be subject to Section 20-010(G).  
 

(K) Signage.   One non-lit panel sign advertising the residential agricultural sales and 
services use and hours of operation may be erected on the plot.   Such signs shall 
be no larger than twelve square feet in sign area and no higher than eight feet above 
the ground.  Signs shall observe the site distance triangle requirement of Article 105, 
“Sight Distance” and  comply with all applicable codes, including permitting 
requirements.  

 
(L) Hours of operation. Hours of operation of a residential agricultural sales and services 

use shall be limited to 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. during week days  five days per week 
and on Saturdays and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays and Sundays 12:00 p.m. 
to 5:00 p.m. No on-site sales shall occur on Sundays. 

 
 

(M) Residential agricultural Sales and Services Uses as of the effective date of this 
ordinance.  A residential agricultural sales and services use as an accessory use to 
the principal use of single-family dwelling in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning 
district that was operating consistent with Section 80-60 (A) as of the effective date 
of this ordinance, as verified by a valid business tax receipt, may continue its current 
operation with the following limitations: 
 

(1) Authorization pursuant to this paragraph  to operate a residential agricultural 
sales and services use shall not include the operation of such use as a 
principal use or an accessory use to any principal use other than single-
family dwelling. 

Page103 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Attachment A to Ordinance No. 2012-12 
 

 
(2) Any future change in ownership of the plot upon which an agricultural sales 

and services business is located,  or the residential sales and services use 
shall invalidate an approval to operate under this paragraph.  

 
Exceptions to the foregoing limitations and conditions shall be subject to approval by the Town 
Council, and such requests shall be considered in conjunction with the criteria set forth in 
Section 170-025(A) for Special Exceptions.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page104 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

5.b.  Ordinance No. 2013-01 

Page105 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



  TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

AGENDA REPORT 

Revised January 31, 2013 

Revised February 28 , 2013 
 
 
TO:                 Mayor and Town Council 
 
FROM:          Mark A. Kutney, Town Manager, AICP, ICMA-CM  
 
DATE:           January 10, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:     Resolution to authorize a Disbursement to Defray Costs Associated with the 

Official Duties of Town Council 
 
 
I.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY 
 
See attached memorandum from Mark A. Kutney to the Finance Advisory & Audit Committee 
(located within the FAAC Agenda attached). At the January 15, 2013 Town Council Meeting,  
Councilman Jarriel made a motion to approve compensation of $500.00 per month per council 
member, as recommended by the FAAC, with a re-evaluation taking place at the end of 12 
months . The motion was seconded by Council Member Liang. The motion passed on a 3/2 vote 
with Mayor Browning and Vice Mayor Rockett opposed. At the February 5, 2013 Town Council 
Meeting, Councilman Liang made a motion to Approve Ordinance No. 2013 on first reading. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Jarriel and passed on a 4/1 vote with Vice Mayor 
Rockett opposed.  
 
 
 
II. DISCUSSION 
 
See attached memorandum from Mark A. Kutney to the Finance Advisory & Audit Committee 
(located within the FAAC Agenda attached)  
 
 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACT 

Page106 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 The Town Management Company provided 3 options to the FAAC.  Option 1 had a total annual 
expenditure of $30,919.25. Options 2 and 3 had an annual expenditure of $28,500.00. The FAAC 
is recommending Option 2 with a modification of a $500.00 monthly allotment and annual 
expenditure of $30,000.00. Vice Chair Elise Ryan will make a presentation to the Town Council. 

 

 ATTACHMENTS 

Finance Advisory & Audit Committee Agenda Packet of January 9, 2013 

 

 
V. RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Town Management Company recommends that Town Council adopt the FAAC 
recommendation to authorize a disbursement to defray costs associated with the official duties of 
the Town Council at a monthly allotment of $500.00 per Town Council Member and a yearly 
allotment of $6000.00 per Town Council Member for an annual expenditure of $30,000.  
 
 

Page107 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page108 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page109 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

Municipality County Population Budget Wages
Belleair Pinellas 3,890              300                     
Biscayne Park Miami Dade 3,126              $3,270,000 2,000                  
Bowling Green Hardee 3,084              $2,500,000 1,800                  
Bunnell Flagler 2,600              9,600                  
Chiefland Levy 2,228              $6,000,000 4,800                  
Crystal River Citrus 3,737              $4,200,000 6,328                  
Dunnellon Marion 2,031              $3,100,000 1,800                  
Eagle Lake Polk 2,732              $1,500,000 1,272                  
Ocean Ridge Palm Beach 2,600              $5,100,000 1,200                  
Ponce Inlet Volusia 3,267              $4,700,000 8,395                  
Williston Levy 2,768              $2,400,000 3,000                  
Atlantis PBC 2,005              $4,000,000 12,800                
Loxahatchee Groves 3,100              $3,675,754
Haverhill PBC 1,894              $1,001,850 5,140                     
Highland Beach PBC 3,539              $10,500,000 14,400                
Hypoluxo PBC 2,636              $1,600,000
Juno Beach PBC 3,181              $6,300,000 3,488                  
Lake Clarke Shores PBC 3,376              $2,400,000 1,291                  
Mangonia Park PBC 2,315              $2,000,000 9,600                  
South Bay PBC 4,876              $2,200,000 15,334                   

Average 2,949              $3,691,534 $5,697
Note:  *  FY2011-2012 Budget

           *** Compensation + Allowances/Health Insurance
            ** FY2013 General Fund 

Florida and Palm Beach County Elected Official Compensation Benefits

Florida League of Cities Salary Survey

Page110 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



UMSG, LLC - Research   December 2012 ©

Belleair Biscayne
Park

Bowling
Green Bunnell Chiefland Crystal

River
Dunnello

n
Eagle
Lake

Ocean
Ridge

Ponce
Inlet Williston Atlantis

Loxahatc
hee

Groves
Haverhill Highland

Beach Hypoluxo Juno
Beach

Lake
Clarke
Shores

Mangoni
a Park

South
Bay

Annual Wage 300 2,000 1,800 9,600 4,800 6,328 1,800 1,272 1,200 8,395 3,000 12,800 5,140 14,400 3,488 1,291 9,600 15,334

Average Comp 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697 5,697

Budget 3,890 3,126 3,084 2,600 2,228 3,737 2,031 2,732 2,600 3,267 2,768 2,005 3,100 1,894 3,539 2,636 3,181 3,376 2,315 4,876

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

16,000

18,000

An
nu

al
 W

ag
e 

 

Annual Compensaton 

Average 
Budget 

Page111 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Title Option 1 - Wages
Option 2 - Auto & Comm 

Allowance*
Monthly Meeting 

Stipend#

Wage 5,700.00$               5,700.00$                              5,700.00$                  
FICA/Medicare Taxes 436.05$                  
Worker's Compensation 17.80$                     
Payroll Services Company 30.00$                     
Total Expense 6,183.85$               5,700.00$                              5,700.00$                  

Monthly Remittance 515.32$                  475.00$                                 475.00$                     

Annual Expenditure 30,919.25$             28,500.00$                           28,500.00$               

* Individual Council member can reduce withholding liability by tracking, recording, and deducting actual mileage 
# Individual Council member can not reduce withholding liability

Annual Compensation Options per Council Member
Municipal Small City Compensation Average

Page112 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page 1 of 3 – Ordinance No. 2013-01 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-01 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 
COMPENSATION FOR COUNCILMEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS,  SEVERABILITY,  AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Section 3(4)(e)2 of the Town Charter of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

authorizes the Town Council, by not fewer than four (4) votes, to adopt an ordinance to establish or 

increase compensation; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town’s Finance and audit Advisory Committee (FAAC) reviewed the 

matter at its January 9, 2013, meeting, and recommended a monthly stipend of $500.00, equal to 

$6,000.00 per year; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its January 15, 2013, meeting, the Town Council directed the Town 

Attorney to prepare an ordinance for consideration consistent with the recommendations of the 

FAAC; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves finds that it is in the 

best interest of the Town to establish compensation for the members of the Town Council, effective 

following the March, 2013, municipal election in the Town, pursuant to the Town Charter.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. The Town Council hereby establishes compensation for the members of the 

Page113 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Ordinance No. 2013-01 
 

[Type text] 
 

Town Council as follows: 

  $500.00 per month, per Councilmember, beginning April 1, 2013. 

Section 3. It is the intention of the Town Council, and it is hereby ordained that the 

provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town’s Code of Ordinances 

upon the codification of the Town’s ordinances.  

Section 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6.   This Ordinance shall become effective following the March 12, 2013 

municipal election, as provided in the Town Charter. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS 5th DAY OF 
FEBRUARY, 2013. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
5th DAY OF MARCH, 2013. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
 FLORIDA 

    
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Councilmember David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Vice Mayor Jim Rockett   
    

Page114 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Ordinance No. 2013-01 
 

[Type text] 
 

       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member 
 
 
        
H:\_GOV CLIENTS\LOX 1574\_070240 GM\ORD 2013\2013-  (Council Compensation).doc 
 

Page115 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

7.a.  Resolution No. 2013-02 

Page116 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page117 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page118 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page119 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page120 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page121 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page122 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page123 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page124 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page125 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page126 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page127 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page128 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page129 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page130 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page131 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page132 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page133 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page134 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page135 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page136 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page137 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page138 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page139 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page140 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page141 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page142 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page143 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page144 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page145 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page146 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page147 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page148 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page149 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page150 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page151 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page152 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page153 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page154 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page155 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page156 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page157 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page158 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page159 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page160 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page161 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page162 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page163 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page164 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page165 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page166 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page167 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page168 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page169 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page170 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page171 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page172 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

10.a.  Initiative Petition Certificate of Insufficiency 

Page173 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page174 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page175 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page176 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page177 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page178 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page179 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page180 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page181 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page182 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page183 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page184 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page185 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page186 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page187 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page188 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page189 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page190 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page191 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page192 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page193 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page194 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page195 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page196 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page197 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page198 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page199 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page200 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

10.b.  Martin McCabe issue – Councilman Ron Jarriel  

Page201 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



 

 

 

10.c.  Abandonment/Foreclosure Properties Information 

Page202 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page203 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page204 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page205 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page206 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page207 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page208 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page209 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page210 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page211 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page212 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page213 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page214 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page215 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page216 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page217 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page218 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page219 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page220 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page221 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page222 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page223 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page224 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page225 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page226 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page227 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page228 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page229 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page230 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page231 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page232 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page233 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page234 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page235 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page236 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page237 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page238 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page239 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page240 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page241 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page242 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page243 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page244 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page245 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page246 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page247 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page248 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page249 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page250 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page251 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page252 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page253 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page254 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page255 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page256 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page257 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page258 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page259 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



Page260 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



FIRST ADDENDUM TO PROVISION OF SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE VILLAGE OF ROYAL PALM BEACH

AND

FEDERAL PROPERTY REGISTRATION CORPORATION

THIS FIRST ADDENDUM, made and entered into this )' 1  " day of August 2012,

effective October 1, 2012,  by and between the Village of Royal Palm Beach,  Florida, a

municipal corporation organized and existing in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida

with offices located at 1050 Royal Palm Beach Boulevard, Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411,

hereinafter referred to as the " VILLAGE", and Federal Property Registration Corp, a Florida

Corporation, with offices at 6767 N. Wickham Rd., Suite 400, Melbourne, Fl. 32940, hereinafter

referred to as the " FPRC", both of whom agree that the current Provision of Services Agreement

made and entered into by the VILLAGE and FPRC on the 13th day of December, 2011 between

the parties is hereby amended in the following manner:

Section 1:      The above-referenced Provision of Services Agreement is extended to run

from October 1, 2012 until September 30, 2013.  This is the first extension of the Agreement for

an additional one ( 1) year term as permitted by the terms of the Agreement at paragraph 5.  The

Agreement may be extended for one ( 1) final, one ( 1) year term if agreed to by the parties

pursuant to the current Provision of Services Agreement dated December 13, 2011.

Section 2:      All other Sections and recitals of the above- referenced Services

Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 3:      This First Addendum shall be attached to the current Provision of Services

Agreement and shall become a part thereof.

Page261 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the VILLAGE has caused this First Addendum to be

signed and executed on its behalf by its Village Manager; and FPRC has signed and

executed this First Addendum, both in duplicate, with an effective date as noted above.

Wi nesses:      Vill.: e o  ' oyal '.    Beach

Raymon.' C. L'?: ' s, P.E.

A    '   ,-    1- LC5-E-vti

Its: Village Manager

II
SEAL)

Date:      8 iti/

Witnesses:       RCR       b1fliC&-       Lzi-       410 I       i

By:   homas R. Darnell

Title: Vice resid nt

IP      /      Date: 0   / 2'

Page262 of 262 Agenda Packet 03-05-2013


	AGENDA
	2.a.Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol Invoices
	2.b. Minutes - November 20, 2012
	      Minutes - December 4, 2012
	      Minutes - February 5, 2013
	3.a. South Florida Water Management Presentation
	4.a. FAAC Report - January 2013
	5.a. Ordinance No. 2012-12
	5.b. Ordinance No. 2013-01
	7.a. Resolution No. 2013-02
	10.a. Initiative Petition Certificate of Insufficiency
	10.b. Martin McCabe issue - Councilman Ron Jarriel
	10.c. Abandonment/Foreclosure Properties Information



